
              Agenda 
 

 

MEETING OF THE SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

 

AGENDA 

 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2015 – 6:00 P.M. 
SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION BOARD MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBER/1 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE, SAN MARCOS, CA 92069 
 
 
Cell Phones:  As a courtesy to others, please silence your cell phone or pager during the meeting and engage in conversations 
outside the Council Chambers.  
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at 
(760) 744-1050, ext. 3121. Notification 48 hours in advance will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Assisted listening devices are available for the hearing impaired. Please see the Board Secretary if you 
wish to use this device.  
 
Public Comment:  If you wish to address the Board on any agenda item, please complete a “Request to Speak” form.  Forms are 
located at the rear of the Council Chambers. Be sure to indicate which item number you wish to address.  Comments are limited to 
FIVE minutes. 
 
The Oral Communication segment of the agenda is for the purpose of allowing the public to address the Board on any matter NOT 
listed on the agenda.  The Board is prohibited by state law from taking action on items NOT listed on the Agenda.  However, they 
may refer the matter to staff for a future report and recommendation.  If you wish to speak under “Oral Communications,” please 
complete a “Request to Speak” form as noted above. 
 
Agendas:  Agenda packets are available for public inspection 72 hours prior to scheduled meetings at the Administration 
Department located on the second floor of City Hall, 1 Civic Center Drive, San Marcos, during normal business hours. 

CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
ROLL CALL 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Recommendation:  NOTE & FILE 
 
2. SMCF GRANT FUNDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

Winter Quarter Funding Recommendation to the SMCF Board for Deliberation. 
 

(a) Regular/Mini Grant Funding History FY 2014-2015 
(b) Funding Recommendation Worksheet – Regular Grants 
(c) SMCF Resolution No. 2014-128 – Regular Grants 
(d) Funding Recommendation Worksheet- Wildlife Fund Grants 

 
       Recommendation:  CONSIDER/APPROVE 
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3. FOLLOW UP ON ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Recommendation: CONSIDER/POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
4. WAIVER OF TEXT This item is to waive the reading of all text of all Resolutions and Policies adopted 

at this meeting. Resolutions and Policies shall be adopted by title. 
Recommendation:  WAIVE 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES SMCF Board Meeting November 18, 2014. 

Recommendation: CONSIDER/APPROVE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES Special SMCF Board Meeting December 14, 2014  

Recommendation: CONSIDER/APPROVE 
 
7. FINANCIAL REPORT  

Recommendation: NOTE & FILE 
 
8. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS Speakers are limited to five minutes. Please complete a “Request to 

Speak” form and place in basket provided. According to Board policy, FIFTEEN minutes has been 
established during this portion of the Agenda to allow citizens to speak on any matter NOT listed. 
The Board is prohibited by state law from taking action on items NOT listed on the Agenda. However 
they may refer the matter for a future report and recommendations.  
 

ITEMS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

9. MISCELLANEOUS 
(a) Selection of next quarter’s Grant Funding Committee 
(b) Arts and Cultural Grants – Applications Currently Being Accepted through 4/15/15 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) ss.       AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
CITY OF SAN MARCOS)   
 
I, Wendy Kaserman, hereby certify that I caused the posting of this Agenda on the bulletin board located at the 
north entrance to City Hall on Thursday, February 12, 2015, at 5:00 pm. 
 
 
 
DATE: Thursday, February 12, 2015     
 
 
 
              
       Wendy Kaserman, Recording Secretary – SMCF 



Sort Name Type Category Received Date Name of Project Summary of Project
Alzheimers Association of 
San DiegoImperial Chapter

Mini‐
Grant

Health & Well 
Being

‐1500 8/13/2014 Alzheimer's Informational 
Packets

To provide informational packets about 
Alzheimer's and resources available to 
families in need.  Funding would provide 
packets to approximately 300 San Marcos 
families.

Foundation for Senior Well 
Being

Mini‐
Grant

Seniors ‐1200 8/13/2014 Senior Resource directory To compile information about organizations 
that provide service to seniors in North 
County.

Boys & Girls Club of San 
Marcos

Regular 
Grant

Education ‐4153 8/19/2014 The Victory Project To help expand the after school program that 
provides extra/remedial support for youth in 
grades 2nd ‐ 5th who have scored below 
basic or far below basic in math and reading 
on standardized testing.

Casa de Amparo Regular 
Grant

Children & 
Youth

‐3000 8/19/2014 Residential Services 
Program

To assist with costs associated with medical 
assessments, transportation to medical 
appointments, education and tutoring, job 
readiness, nutrition education and 
recreational and therapeutic activities. 
Program will serve 60 San Marcos residents, 
age prenatal to 21 years old.

North County Health Services Regular 
Grant

Health & Well 
Being

‐4315 8/19/2014 Project All Ready (PAR) 
Program

To purchase a new auditory screening unit to 
provide free hearing and vision screenings to 
children 18 mos to 5 years old at preschools, 
day cares and Head Starts.

Partnerships With Industry Regular 
Grant

Health & Well 
Being

‐2000 8/19/2014 Assisting adults with 
disabilities

To provide vocation training, assessment, 
placement and ongoing support to adults 
living with disabilities in San Marcos in order 
to help them thrive in the work environment.

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
Grants Awarded FY14‐15
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The Angel's Depot Regular 
Grant

Seniors ‐500 8/19/2014 Senior Emergency Meal 
Box Program

To help support the meal box program which 
provides a specifically formulated, nutritious 
nonperishable meal to age and income 
qualified seniors.

Kiwanis Club of San Marcos 
Foundation

Mini‐
Grant

Civic Life ‐1500 9/10/2014 San Marcos Holiday 
Parade

To provide partnership support for the San 
Marcos Holiday Parade.

Positive Action Community 
Theatre (PACT)

Mini‐
Grant

Children & 
Youth

‐1500 9/10/2014 Theatre/Life Skills 
Workshops

To fund theatre/life skills workshops for 
children with autism at the Country School in 
San Marcos.

REINS Mini‐
Grant

Health & Well 
Being

‐1000 10/8/2014 Equipment Update To assist with the organization's Equipment 
Update Project which will allow REINS to 
purchase equipment for their riding program

Bayshore Preparatory 
Charter School

Regular 
Grant

Education ‐4500 11/18/2014 Assistance with purchasing 
science materials

Assistance with purchasing science materials 
to provide students with hands on science 
learning.

Meals‐On‐Wheels Regular 
Grant

Health & Well 
Being

‐2000 11/18/2014 Rent Assistance To help subsidize the cost of rent at its North 
County Service Center located at 930 
Boardwalk #C, San Marcos, CA

San Marcos High School Band 
Boosters

Regular 
Grant

Children & 
Youth

‐1000 11/18/2014 Transportation Assistance 
for the San Marcos High 
School Music Program

To assist with the costs of providing 
transportation for the San Marcos High 
School marching band to various 
competitions and events. 

Tri‐City Hospital Foundation Regular 
Grant

Health & Well 
Being

‐4500 12/16/2014 Lung Cancer Screening 
Program

To assist with the costs of the Lung Cancer 
Screening Program, which will assess and 
refer 25 high risk individuals who reside in 
San Marcos to screening with low‐dose 
computed tomography (LDCT).

Total Awaded ‐32668
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

Winter Quarter 2015- Funding Recommendation Worksheet 

Asset Balance on 6/30/2014: $1,300,541.17 

San Marcos- Now and Forever Funds for Current Grantmaking FY 2014-2015: $1,645   

Available for Distribution for FY14-15: $53,667 - $66,672 

Total FY14-15 Distributions Year to Date= $32,668 

Total Remaining Funds for FY if Awarding Grants at 4% if Assets Available= $20,999 

Total Remaining Funds for FY if Awarding Grants at 5% of Assets Available: $34,002  

Target distribution for each quarter to evenly distribute funds across all quarters:  

Awarding Grants at 4% of Assets Available=$13,417 

Awarding Grants at 5% of Assets Available=$16,668 

 

Total Funds Remaining for the Winter Quarter at 4% Level=$13,417 

Funds Remaining for the Winter Quarter at 5% Level= $16,668 

 

Applicant Grant Type Summary of Request Requested GFC Recommended 
Funding  

INTERFAITH 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 

Regular To provide funding towards 
the organization’s Senior 
Services Program to provide 
aid and support to vulnerable 
and low income senior 
citizens in the North San 
Diego County Community. 
Serves 150 San Marcos 
residents. 

$10,000 $6,534 

JUST IN TIME FOR 
FOSTER YOUTH 

Regular To provide transitioning 
foster youth with the 
necessary 

$9,600 $3,600 

SMCF Board 2/17/15 Item 2(b) Page 1 of 2



 

computers,technology tools, 
school and dorm supplies to 
support their college success. 
Serves 15-20 San Marcos 
residents. 
 

SOLUTIONS FOR 
CHANGE 

Regular To support their Solutions 
Case Management program. 
The grant will fund the 
supportive services provided 
by their corps of coaches who 
provide constant mentoring 
to address the specific issues 
and needs of the homeless. 
Serves 24 San Marcos 
residents. 

$10,000 $6,534 

   Total Grants Requested: 
$29,600 

$16,668 
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

Grant Cover Page 

(Choose one)  MINI-GRANT (Choose one) X REGULAR GRANT 

Project Name: Just in Time for Foster 

Youth College Bound 

Date Submitted: 1/7/2015 

Total # of people served: 

Approximately 70 former foster youth 

Total # of San Marcos residents served: 

15-20 students 

Amount 

Requested: $9,600 

Non-Profit  Organization Name and Address, Website 

Just in Time for Foster Youth 

PO Box 81292 

San Diego, CA 92138 

Contact Person -Name, Title & Phone, email 

Don Wells, Executive Director 

858.663.2081 

dwells@jitfosteryouth.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 

Historically there are 15-20 transitioning foster youth residing in San Marcos who participate 

in the Just in Time for Foster Youth College Bound Program. Just in Time (JIT) requests a $9,600 

grant from the San Marcos Community Foundation to provide 8 of those transitioning foster youth with the 

necessary computers, technology tools, school and dorm supplies to support success on their new journey as 

college students. These resources will be provided along with a caring and committed JIT College Bound 

Coach (volunteer) to provide the encouragement , support and attention that will eventually help lead to 

graduation. This grant request does not fund personnel or administrative costs - only  essential tech tools, 

equipment and supplies going directly to youth to help them succeed in college. 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 

For the 10% of transitioning foster youth entering college, many have tuition covered but do not have the 

essential resources, including human resources , to be truly successful. Without these support systems, the 

college graduation statistics for former foster youth would stay at their traditional 2-4% levels rather than the 

more promising rates since College Bound 's inception. Since 2009, 81% of the students enrolled in our College 

Bound program have either graduated, gone on to graduate school, or are still enrolled. Achieving these 

outcomes is about more than providing the doorway to higher education.  It requires a commitment to follow 

through by keeping track of their progress and deepening their connections to our programs and community. 

Please attach the following items. 

Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 

1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet)

2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers
4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations

a. Regular Grants Only:

1-2 page narrative

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including

any management letters associated with Audit.

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on

Application

e. Optional: letters of support

____

Name, Title 

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 

San Marcos Community Foundation 

c/o City of San Marcos 

1 Civic Center Drive 

San Marcos, CA  92069 

Email (PDF Format): wkasennan@san-marcos .net 

Expected date project will begin/end: 2/1/2015 
Date by which funds will be expended: 11/30/2015

Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

________________________________________
Name, Title Date

1/7/2015
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION BUDGET WORKSHEET 

Just in Time for Foster Youth’s College Bound Program 

 

 

65 Youth Awards 

Laptop, printer, books, dorm set up, school supplies @$1,200 each  $78,000 

 

15 Youth Laptops (Year Round) @$500 each     $7,500 

 

6 Youth Tuition Fees Assistance @ $300 each     $1,800 

 

15 Youth Book Assistance @ $200 each      $3,000 

 

Transportation Assistance        $1,850 

25 Youth with bus passes @ $74 each 

 

10 Youth with School Supplies @ $60 each      $600 

 

College Bound Event/Year Long Events      $5,000 

 

1 Graduate Scholarship        $2,000 

 

Computer Repairs/software for Youth      $1,000 

 

Program Coordinator         $20,000 

 

Administrative Costs         $5,000 

 

Total Budget for this PROJECT:       $125,750 

Grant Request Amount:       $9,600 
 

Is this a challenge grant? No           Could it be? Possibly 

 

Please list any other funding sources for this project. 
Committed (C) or Pending (P) 

$20,000  Farrell Family Foundation   C 

$10,000 Goldberg Charitable Trust   C 

$10,000  Crevier Family Foundation   C 

$10,000  Cox Cares Foundation   C 

$10,000  Ashford Education    P 

$7,500  Issa Family Foundation  C 

$5,000  Weil Foundation    C 

$5,000  Mission Bch Women’s Club  P 

$5,000  AmericanWest Bank   P 

$5,000  Hill Charitable Trust   C 

$4,000  Day For Change   C 
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                                                                                Just in Time For Foster Youth
                                                                               Statement of Activity - San Diego 

                                                                              FY15 Budget

 FY15 Budget 
REVENUE
      Direct Public Support
         Corporations 155,000$              

         Foundations 405,000                

         Individuals 530,000                

         Civic and Faith Organizations 50,000                  

         Special Events
           Gross Revenue Special Events 187,000                

              Less Direct Costs of Special Events -                        

                Special Events - Net Revenue 187,000                

          Total Direct Public Support 1,327,000             

      Government Agencies 13,000                  

      Grants Restricted -                        

          Subtotal Revenue 1,340,000             

      In-Kind Donations
         Youth Awards 210,000                

         Rent 51,120                  

         SVP In-kind Donations 25,000                  

           Total In-Kind Donations 286,120                

       Interest and Dividend Income
         TOTAL REVENUE 1,626,120             

AWARDS AND EXPENSES
  Program Awards
      Basic Needs 80,000                  

      My First Home 34,000                  

      College Bound/Vocational 100,000                

      Career Horizons 29,300                  

      Bridge to Success 28,700                  

      Financial Fitness 72,000                  

       Coaching/Volunteer 16,412                  

      Ambassador/ LEAP/Take Charge 5,000                    

      Community and other 5,000                    

      Payroll and Indirect Expense Allocations 426,314                

        Total Program Awards 796,726                

  In-Kind Awards
      Educational & Vocational 6,000                    

      Basic Needs 23,000                  

      Career Horizons 6,000                    

      Home Furnishings 103,000                

      Miscellaneous 72,000                  

        Total In-Kind Awards 210,000                
Page 1
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 FY15 Budget 
  Development and Fundraising Expenses
      Advertising/Promotional 32,200                  

      Consultants (including SVP inkind $10k) 37,000                  

      Credit Card Charges
      Event Expense 10,000                  

       Miscellanous/Rent 12,000                  

      Printing, Copying & Postage 6,400                    

      Travel/Meals/Entertainment 1,200                    

      Sales Force Software Services
      Payroll and Indirect Expense Allocations 258,006                

        Total Development and Fundraising Expense 356,806                

   Administrative and Office Expenses
     Personnel Expenses
        Employees Salaries 553,720                

        Insurance - Healthcare 72,220                  

        Payroll Service Fees -                        

        Payroll Taxes 45,462                  

        Workers' Compensation 3,351                    

          Total Personnel Expenses 674,753                

      Other Administrative and Office Expenses
        Bank Fees 410                       

        Computer and Internet 9,960                    

         Contract Services 80,000                  

         Credit Card Fees 6,000                    

         Insurance - Liability, D and O 6,800                    

         Telephone, Telecommunications 6,600                    

         Office Supplies 5,300                    

         Printing and Copying 6,200                    

         Advertising/Promotional 6,000                    

         Office Rent - In-kind 51,120                  

          Office Rent - Annex 4,596                    

          Registration and Licensing Fees 160                       

         Staff Development 8,000                    

         Travel and Meetings 4,400                    

        Depreciation Expense 3,600                    

          Total Other Administrative and Office Expenses 199,146                

             Total Adminsitrative and Office Expenses 873,899                

      Payroll and Indirect Expense Allocations (708,642)

         Net Administrative and Office Expenses 165,257

          TOTAL AWARDS AND EXPENSES 1,528,789
            CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 97,331$                

Page 2
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IN' I 'FJ]?NAL. REVENUE SERVICE
P. () .  BOX 2508
(I IN(: INTIAT],  OH 4520I

Lrare: JU'N,1 4 Z0A;l

JUST IN TIIVIE FOR FOSTER YOUTH
C/O KATHRYN VAT'GTIN
336] HARBOR VIEW DR
SAN DIEGO, CA 92106

DEPARTMENT OF ' fHE TREASURY

Flmnlover Tdent i  f  iCaL j .On Number:
2A-5448416'

DLN:
1705308900800?

Contact  Person:
RENEE RAIIJEY NORTON ID# 3I I72

eonf ; l  . l -  Tel  enhong NUmbef :

(877) 829-ss00
Account ing Per iod Ending:

June 3 0
o,, l - , ' r  i  n rrhrr i  Fi ,  cLatUS.

170 (b) (  1)  (A) (v i  )
F Ornl  y v o Keq\r  l .  reo :

Ef f  ecL j . ' , 'e Date uf  Exempt ion :
July 16, 2006

ConLribu[ ion Deduct ib i l  i ty  :
Yes

Arirr :nce Prr l  i r rn F'nr{ i r rn n^Fa.

June 30, 20f l

I )c.rr  App. l  j  cant- :

we.rrc pleased to inform you that u.pon review of  your appl icat ion for  tax
exempt sLatus we have deberrnined that you are exempt f rorn Federal  income Lax
utrder:  secL. j -on 501(c) (3) of  t ,he lnbernal  Revenue Code. Contr ibut ions t ,o you are
dedrrct- . i . .b ler  under sect ion 1- '?O of  the Code. You are also qual i f ied to receive
Lax deduct. ib le beques,ts,  devis,es,  t raR,sfers or gi f ts under sect ion 2055, 2106
or 252.2 of  Lhe Code. Becau,se hl . l j .s  let t .er  could help resotve any quest ions
regarding your exempt status,  you shor"r ld keep iL.  in yol l r  permanenL records.

Organizat ions exempt under sect ion 501(c) (3) of  bhe Code are fur ther c lassi f ied
as ei ther publ ic char i t ies or pr ivate foundat ions.  Dur ing your advance rul ing
per i .od,  yor)  wi l l  be t reaL.ed as a publ ic char:" [y.  Your advance rul ing per iod
br:gtns wi th Lhe ef fect ive dabe of  your exemption and ends wi[ l r  advance rul ing
ending daLe shown in the headrng of  the le[Eer.

Sl ' tor t . ly  befr : r r :e the encl  of  yor,rr  a.dvance nr l ing per iod,  we wi l l  send you Form
8':/.9.1 , iiir,p1,,11v1- S,ci'recixlril.e f;or AlH:vra$;e,e.&t+l-*dr"!I Ferrocl . Yo,t"r wiIl have 90 days af Ler
t l re-  r r : - , r l  c , f  yoi l r .  aclv.aar:e rrrJ.  j .ng per i r , rd to reLurn the co. i t t rpJ".e^t€cl  f  ot :m. We wj 11
Lherr  nr-rL:r . f .y you, in wr ' . i t ing,  about your pui :1 ic char iLy sbaLus.

Please see enclosed fnformaLion for ExempL Organizat ions Under sect ion
50f (c)  (3)  l lor  some helpf  u l  inf  orrnat ion abouL yo\rr  responsibi l rLres as an exempt
organizaI  ion.

iJet , ter  1045 (DO/cG)
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-2

r.TIJ$f 1P TIME FOR FOSTER YOUTT{

We have senb a copy of  Ehis let ter  topower of  aL, torney.

Director,  Ex.empt Organizat ions
Rulingis and Ag,ne,emenbs

EncLosure" '  
, t l j : ;T: . ; : i " j : io l rn*nrzar, ions Exempr unr ler  secr ion so1 (c)  (3 )

your representat

S incerely,

ive as indica[ed in your

t rnhorF alr^. , 'u urruf

Leftpr l  ndc l^^/ .^\J \  uwl L\J/
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Just in Time for Foster Youth 
Board of Directors Roster, Affiliations, and Tenure 

FY 2014/2015 
   

Board membership has a minimum two-year term with no term limits. 100% of board 
members contribute financially to the JIT organization. There is a “Give or Get” requirement 
of $3,000 per year, and every board member is required to actively participate in at least one 
committee, make every effort to attend key JIT events, and attend at least 75% of the board 
meetings.  
 
Kristy Gregg  
Board Chair, Retired Bank Executive 
2 years  
 
Keith Brandt  
Vice-Chair, President, California Wealth Transitions 
2 years 
 
Krystal Joscelyne 
Treasurer, Strategic & Financial Planning Manager, Sempra Energy 
1 year 
 
Patricia Benesh 
Secretary, Owner, AuthorAssist.com; 7Memories.com 
6 years  
 
Walter Borschel 
Retired Health Care Administrator 
Incoming 
 
Chris Burr  
Senior VP/Relationship Manager, AmericanWest Bank 
Incoming 
 
Gabrielle Durand 
Project Manager, Workforce Intelligence, John Deere; Durand Mobile Notary 
1 year 
 
Theodore DeFrank 
President and CFO, Active Motif 
1 year 
 
Kristin Fitzner  
Manager, Corporate Marketing & Sponsorship, U.S. Bank 
Incoming 
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Lisa Foussianes 
Vice President, Client Manager, Square 1 Bank 
5 years 
 
Pamela Hunt 
Retired Educator 
1 year  
 
James Lepanto 
Behavioral Health Consultant 
1 year 
 
Jennell Mott 
Business Operations Manager, Managed Solution 
Incoming 
 
Brad Norris 
Philanthropist and Community Volunteer 
2 years 
 
Jessica Preese 
Account Manager, United Health Group 
2 years 
 
Marge Schingle 
Senior Director, WageWorks 
1 year 
 
Tina Thomas 
Retired Architect 
1 year 
 

ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 
Jorge Cabrera 
Supervisor, Casey Family Programs 
 
Harriet Carter, Esq. 
A Professional Law Corporation 
 
Margie de Ruyter 
Consultant, Community and Workforce Development 
 
Lynne Doyle  
Chief Financial Officer, Sand River Holdings  
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Sean Ferrel 
CEO/President, Managed Solution 
 
Judy Forrester 
President/CEO, USO San Diego 
 
Barney King  
CEO, Macnas Consulting International  
 
Marcy Morrison  
President, Careers With Wings 
 
Alan Sorkin 
Chair, Vistage International  
 
Duane Trombly  
Principal, PointeBreak Solutions, Inc.  
 
Maurice Wilson 
Executive Director, National Veterans Transition Services  
 
 

HONORARY BOARD/CO-FOUNDERS  
 
Diane Cox 
Co-Founder/Past Board Chair, Professional Coach and Development Consultant 
 
Jeanette Day, Esq. 
Co-Founder, Former Child Advocacy Attorney 
 
Tony Hsu  
Co-Founder/Past Treasurer, Founder/Chief Investment Officer, Alethea Capital Management, 
LLC 
 
Louarn Sorkin 
Co-Founder, Board of Directors, San Diego Social Venture Partners 

Kathryn Vaughn, Esq. 
Co-Founder/Past President, Partner, Law Offices of Vaughn and Vaughn 
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COLLEGE BOUND NARRATIVE 
 

THE NEED 

While there is some support for transitioning foster youth in the form of housing, college scholarships, 

and other services, JIT mobilizes the community to fill the gaps of essential resources. We use a unique, 

relationship-based, extended family model to meet the fundamental need for a consistent caring 

connection that has eluded foster youth while in care and in transition. 

Specifically, College Bound addresses the need for effective long-term support to navigate higher 

education.  We have attached the heartwarming story of a young woman, sponsored by your 

foundation, whose introduction to Cal State San Marcos this past fall was clearly transformed from one 

of angst, panic, and discouragement to one of stability, confidence and joy. Continuous opportunities for 

positive relationships and networking connections are at the heart of what we do and also what sets us 

apart from agencies that simply provide resources. 

By supporting the youth through this holistic approach, we are able to achieve outcomes very different 

from the sobering statistics on former foster youth in our state and nation, including one alarming 

education statistic reported by The Cities, Counties and Schools (CCS) Partnership that found that 70% of 

foster youth reported a desire to go to college, while only 10% attend and 1-3% graduate.  The reported 

graduation rates have improved slightly since that time (3-5%) with growing attention to the graduation 

gap but they are still at unacceptable levels, which reinforces our commitment to our model. 

THE COLLEGE BOUND MODEL 
 

Through our College Bound program, the JIT extended family comes together to give transitioning foster 

youth the resources and encouragement they need to begin a new life chapter as college students. 

Specifically, JIT annually identifies 50-75 highly motivated former foster youth who have beaten the 

odds by graduating high school and having earned acceptance to college. Historically, 15-20 of 

participants are San Marcos residents and often enrolled in colleges located in San Marcos, California. 

Since 2009, 81% of our College Bound participants have either graduated, gone on to graduate school, 

or are still enrolled in school! 

In 2015, as in years past, they will be connected with potential lifelong mentors and successful JIT 

College Bound Alumni, receive laptops and printers, learn valuable tips on money management, legal 

matters and practical purchases, and pair up with a JIT volunteer guide for a shopping spree to buy 

essential dorm furnishings and school supplies. They will also be eligible to participate in other JIT 

programs such as Financial Fitness, Emergency/Basic Needs, and Mentoring/Guidance. 

The College Bound Class of 2015 will join other dedicated, deserving and grateful young people as we 

fulfill the promise, not only to help get them started in higher education, but to also provide the 

consistent, caring connection that will encourage them to stay in school and to graduate. 
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TYPES OR AMOUNTS OF SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED 
 

JIT’s College Bound program specifically addresses two key issues for transitioning foster youth who 

have beaten the odds and earned acceptance into college, which are lack of resources and lack of family 

support. 

Each youth will receive items necessary for college success, including: laptops, software, printers, other 

technology tools, basic school supplies (e.g., printer ink, paper, backpack, etc.), and gift cards to 

purchase necessary items for dorm set-ups. The distribution of resources is accompanied by a 

connection to a caring adult mentor, one who assists the youth with making prudent choices while 

shopping for essentials and dorm furnishings. Often, these adults become invested in the youth and his 

or her college success and, like a family, offer encouragement and additional resources to the youth 

over the long-term. 

At a cost of $1,200 per youth, the grant funds of $9,600 from the San Marcos Community Foundation 

will enable Just in Time to meet the needs of 8 transitioning foster youth who reside in San Marcos. 

OUTCOMES/MEASURES 
 

College Bound participants are tracked and monitored throughout their time in higher education and 

regular reports are developed based on the JIT Self-Sufficiency Scale. Success is evaluated based on 

school enrollment over time, graduation or certification, and continuation on to graduate studies. The 

data collected is done through staff contact, connections to JIT volunteers (Faculty), and mandatory 

online surveys.  For example, we tracked nearly 400 students who have been in the program since it 

launched and know that 89% have either graduated or remain enrolled in school. 

The long-term goal of all of JIT’s programs, including College Bound, is to give disadvantaged youth the 

resources and community connections needed to help them become independent, self-sufficient, 

thriving adults who ultimately will make meaningful contributions to our community. 

Of all the students who received laptops and other support from the San Marcos Community 

Foundation during the last grant period, 100% are still enrolled in school with the one exception of a 

student who graduated. 

CLASS OF 2015 
 

Soon, JIT will begin the process of recruiting new College Bound participants. We invite members of the 

San Marcos Community Foundation to participate in the process by reviewing the applicant essays to 

get a powerful picture of the young people your funds help support. We also invite you to participate in 

the College Bound event this June, including engaging as volunteer shoppers with the young people 

from San Marcos whom the SDCF is supporting. We are confident that this first-hand experience will 

clearly demonstrate that your investment is not only worthwhile but transformational. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Just in Time for Foster Youth  
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Just in Time for Foster Youth, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Just in Time for Foster Youth as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
 
We have previously audited Just in Time for Foster Youth’s 2013 financial statements, and we expressed an 
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated March 5, 2014. In our opinion, 
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 
 

 
 
San Diego, California 
November 20, 2014 
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2014 2013
Assets: (Notes 1, 2 and 3)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 295,460      $ 228,590      
Contributions receivable, net 149,094      205,773      
Prepaid expenses and other assets 9,158          5,149          
Furniture and equipment, net 873             4,502          

TOTAL ASSETS $ 454,585      $ 444,014      

Liabilities: (Note 1)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 14,521        $ 6,807          
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 15,095        14,929        

Total Liabilities 29,616        21,736        

Commitments (Note 5)

Net Assets: (Notes 1 and 4)
Unrestricted 173,512      306,033      
Temporarily restricted 251,457      116,245      

Total Net Assets 424,969      422,278      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 454,585      $ 444,014      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

ASSETS
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Temporarily 2013
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Revenue and Support:
Contributions $ 838,329      $ 305,560      $ 1,143,889   $ 1,101,852   
Interest income 236             -                  236             305             
Net assets released from restrictions 170,348      (170,348)     -                  -                  

Revenue and Support Before Special Events 1,008,913   135,212      1,144,125   1,102,157   
Special Events:

Revenue 270,949      -                  270,949      519,366      
Less: Costs (85,554)       -                  (85,554)       (292,923)     

Total Special Events, Net 185,395      -                  185,395      226,443      
Total Revenue and Support 1,194,308   135,212      1,329,520   1,328,600   

Expenses:
Program Services 928,552      -                  928,552      801,325      

Supporting Services:
Fundraising 277,095      -                  277,095      225,689      
General and administrative 121,182      -                  121,182      140,862      

Total Supporting Services 398,277      -                  398,277      366,551      

Total Program and Supporting Services 1,326,829   -                  1,326,829   1,167,876   

Change in Net Assets (132,521)     135,212      2,691          160,724      

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 306,033      116,245      422,278      261,554      

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 173,512      $ 251,457      $ 424,969      $ 422,278      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2014
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College Total

Basic My First Financial Bridge to Career  Bound/ Contra Program Program General and 2014 2013

Needs Home Fitness Success Horizons Education Community Costa Other Administration Services Administrative Fundraising Total Total

Salaries and related benefits $ 44,229          $ 28,496          $ 28,048          $ 41,606          $ 19,550          $ 15,487          $ 57,049          $ 20,454          $ 13,845          $ 65,456               $ 334,220        $ 50,104               $ 149,289        $ 533,613        $ 401,385        

Program awards 139,845        149,370        44,791          12,863          12,270          78,531          12,040          6,574            25,268          83                     481,635        -                        -                    481,635        481,305        

Professional services -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    177               -                    -                        177               49,597               47,257          97,031          73,102          

Office expense 4,555            3,725            3,430            3,725            2,546            1,715            5,842            2,198            7,006            17,739               52,481          10,183               29,680          92,344          80,719          

Contract labor 2,331            1,879            1,740            1,879            1,322            870               2,888            20,731          731               8,977                43,348          2,609                8,837            54,794          78,390          

Promotional events -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    112               -                    74                 1,426            -                        1,612            -                        31,202          32,814          14,716          

Printing 362               292               271               292               206               135               449               569               114               1,396                4,086            406                   4,697            9,189            12,724          

Insurance 437               352               326               352               248               163               541               137               137               1,682                4,375            489                   1,656            6,520            2,392            

Bank fees -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                        -                    5,085                10                 5,095            1,286            

Conference, meetings and training 100               80                 74                 80                 57                 37                 356               547               31                 384                   1,746            2,341                737               4,824            3,193            

Depreciation 244               196               181               196               138               91                 301               76                 76                 936                   2,435            272                   922               3,629            6,726            

Postage and shipping 55                 45                 41                 45                 31                 21                 666               172               17                 213                   1,306            62                     1,396            2,764            1,818            

Travel 30                 61                 23                 24                 60                 11                 37                 606               163               116                   1,131            34                     1,412            2,577            3,968            

Other expenses -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                    -                -                    -                -                    6,152            

 Total Program and Supporting

    Services Expenses $ 192,188        $ 184,496        $ 78,925          $ 61,062          $ 36,428          $ 97,173          $ 80,169          $ 52,315          $ 48,814          $ 96,982               $ 928,552        $ 121,182             $ 277,095        $ 1,326,829     $ 1,167,876     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Supporting ServicesProgram Services
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2014 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets $ 2,691          $ 160,724      
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 3,629          6,726          
(Increase) Decrease in:

Contributions receivable, net 56,679        (163,773)     
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,009)         278             
Inventory -                  8,107          

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7,714          (5,179)         
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 166             2,014          
Deferred revenue -                  (19,350)       
   Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 66,870        (10,453)       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 66,870        (10,453)       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 228,590      239,043      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 295,460      $ 228,590      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: 
 

Organization 
 
Just in Time for Foster Youth (the “Organization”), a not-for-profit organization incorporated in the State of 
California in 2006, envisions a future in which every youth leaving the foster care system has a community of 
caring adults waiting for them when they turn eighteen and leave the foster care system. 
 
The Organization believes consistent, long-term help from the heart is the foundation for the success of our 
youth so that they can thrive and enjoy productive, satisfying lives. 
 
The Organization mobilizes a caring community as an extended family for transitioning foster youth.  This is 
done through consistent relationships and emergency resources provided by individuals, agencies, businesses 
and foundations that share the core values and mission.  
 
While other programs might assist with support such as transitional housing or college scholarships, the 
Organization looks where there is a critical need and fills that gap to ensure that motivated youth reach their 
goal of self-sufficient adulthood.  The Organization also fills the most important gap of all: connections to 
caring adults, who then become a lifelong support system and the consistent community for the youth served. 
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Method of Accounting 
 
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting which is in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and, 
accordingly, reflects all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The financial statements present information regarding the financial position and activities according to three 
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net 
assets. 
 

 Unrestricted net assets – Net assets not subject to donor imposed stipulations 
 
 Temporarily restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that will be met 

by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.  When a donor stipulated time restriction 
ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. 
 

 Permanently restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations requiring that 
they be maintained permanently by the Organization.  The income from these assets is available for 
either general operations or specific programs as specified by the donor. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:  (Continued) 
 
Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued) 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of a financial statement in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statement.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Fair Value Measurements  
 
Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair 
value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value 
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market 
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level 1 
or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions 
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).  The Organization had no financial instruments at 
June 30, 2014 and 2013.  
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
Management believes that all contributions receivable were fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for 
doubtful accounts was recorded as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. 
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is in substance, 
unconditional.  Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if 
the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.  All other donor-restricted 
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature 
of the restrictions.  When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets. 
 
Capitalization and Depreciation 
 
The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $2,000 for furniture and equipment at cost, while 
donations of furniture and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values.  Such donations are reported as 
unrestricted unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose.  Assets donated with explicit 
restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire furniture and equipment are 
reported as restricted.  Furniture and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful asset lives as follows: 
 

Furniture and fixtures 5 - 7 years 
Office equipment and computers 5 years 

 
Depreciation totaled $3,629 and $6,726 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:  (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued) 
 
Capitalization and Depreciation  (Continued) 
 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.  Upon sale or disposition of property or equipment, 
the asset account is reduced by the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is reduced by the depreciation 
taken prior to the sale.  Any resultant gain or loss is then recorded as income or expense. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated unpaid vacation totaling $15,096 and $14,929 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, is accrued 
when earned and included in accrued payroll and related liabilities. 

 
Donated Services, Support and Facilities 
 
The Organization utilizes the services of many volunteers throughout the year.  This contribution of services by 
the volunteers is not recognized in the financial statements unless the services received (a) create or enhance 
nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills which are provided by individuals possessing those skills and 
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.  The donated services for the year ended June 
30, 2014 and 2013, did not meet the requirements above, therefore no amounts were recognized in the financial 
statements. 
 
The Organization received in-kind donations totaling $239,615 and $220,265 for the years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013, respectively, which have been recorded as contributions revenue and expenses in the statement of 
activities. 
 
The Organization occupies office facilities donated by Casey Family Programs.  Donated facilities totaled 
$51,116 and $51,116 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were recorded at fair value at 
the date of donation, and have been included in contributions revenue and expenses in the statement of 
activities. 
 
Allocated Expenses 
 
Expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting service classifications on the basis 
of internal records and estimates made by the Organization’s management. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Organization is a public charity and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.  The Organization believes 
that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax 
positions that are material to the financial statement.  The Organization is not a private foundation. 
 
The Organization’s Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, 
2012 and 2011 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and State taxing authorities, 
generally three to four years after the returns were filed. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies:  (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies  (Continued) 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts and money market funds which, at times, may 
exceed federally insured limits.  The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  The 
Organization believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Comparative Totals for June 30, 2013 
 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net 
asset class.  This summarized information is for comparative purposes only, and accordingly, such information 
should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013, 
from which the summarized comparative information was derived. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments available 
for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through November 20, 2014, which is the date the 
financial statement is available for issuance, and concluded that there were no events or transactions that 
needed to be disclosed. 
 

Note 2 - Contributions Receivable: 
 
Contributions receivable consist of the following at June 30: 
 

  2014  2013 
     
Receivable due in less than one year $ 70,700 $ 127,250 
Receivable due in one to five years  80,000  80,000 

Less: Discounts to present value  (1,606)  (1,477) 
Contributions Receivable, Net $ 149,094 $ 205,773 

 
The contributions receivable have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of .88% and .66% 
at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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Note 3 - Furniture and Equipment: 
 
Furniture and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 
 

  2014  2013 
     
Office equipment and computers $ 26,774 $ 26,774 
Furniture and fixtures  1,554  1,554 

Subtotal  28,328  28,328 
Less:  Accumulated depreciation  (27,455)  (23,826) 

Furniture and Equipment, Net $ 873 $ 4,502 
 
Note 4 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 
 

  2014  2013 
     
Coaching $ 139,987 $ - 
Time Restriction  78,394  78,523 
College Bound  25,086  27,436 
Vocation  7,719  - 
Computer/Tech  271  - 
Career Horizons  -  5,545 
Contra Costa  -  4,741 

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 251,457 $ 116,245 
 
Net assets totaling $170,348 were released from donor restrictions due to the satisfaction of purpose or time 
restrictions during the year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
Note 5 - Commitments: 
 
The Organization has a lease for office space that expires December 31, 2015.  The landlord has provided the 
space rent-free subject to the terms and conditions of the lease agreement.  (Note 1) 
 
The Organization leases office space under a lease agreement that expires March 31, 2016 with two, one-year 
options to renew.  Rent expense totaled $14,950 and $5,861 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, and is included with office expenses on the statement of functional expenses.  The related future 
minimum lease payments are as follows: 
 

Years Ended    
June 30    

    
2015  $ 18,075 
2016   13,859 
Total  $ 31,934 
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Invest in a Life, Transform a Community 

A week before her move-in day at Cal State San Marcos, Erika was without 

a place to stay.  It reminded her of what she missed most while in foster 

care, “a support system, anyone who would care and listen” and, as she 

says, “just treat me like a living, breathing person.”   

Fortunately, the Ace Scholars program at CSUSM connected Erika to Just in 

Time’s College Bound program where her volunteer shopper, Pamela, 

helped her purchase all the essential resources she would need for school.  

But Erika was surprised when  Pamela and her husband, David, also 

opened their home to her until she could move  into her dorm. “I’ve never 

felt so welcomed, like I belonged there!” 

When the time came, David did what most fathers do -helping Erika with a school  

budget and moving her into her dorm room.  And, once she was settled in, the three  

of them enjoyed the Parent/Student dinner hosted by the university – a memory Erika will cherish forever. 

Without family or community support, young adults like Erika are at risk of being homeless, unemployed, and  
under-educated. All too often they are placed on the path towards life-long dependence or prison. 50% of former 

foster youth become homeless within 18 months of emancipation. 
 

While other programs might assist with support such as transitional housing or college scholarships, JIT fills the 

most essential gaps that still remain, ensuring that motivated youth reach their goal of self-sufficient and satisfied 

lives. In doing so, we also fill the most important gap of all: connections to caring adults who then become a  

lifelong support system and the consistent community for the youth we serve. 

Don Wells, Executive Director ·  don@jitfosteryouth.org · (858) 663-2081 

www.JitFosterYouth.org  ·  P.O. Box 81292 San Diego, CA 92138  ·  All donations are tax deductible Federal Tax ID #20-5448416 
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(Choose one)   MINI-GRANT     (Choose one)  REGULAR GRANT  

Project Name: Solutions Case Management 

Date Submitted: 1/05/15 

Total # of people served: 484 

Total # of San Marcos 

 residents served: 24 

Amount  

Requested: $10,000 

Non-Profit Organization Name and Address, Website 

 

Solutions for Change, Inc. 

722 W. California Avenue 

Vista, CA 92083 

www.solutionsforchange.org 

Contact Person – Name, Title & Phone, email 

 

Tammy Megison 

Executive Vice-President 

(760) 941-6545 ext. 304 

tammy@solutionsforchange.org 

Briefly describe your request for funds (to be expanded upon in narrative for regular grant): 

Solutions for Change is seeking a grant to support our Solutions Case Management program, the program at the 

heart of our families’ 1,000-day journey out of homelessness.  The grant will fund the supportive services 

provided by our highly skilled corps of coaches who provide constant mentoring and follow a highly 

individualized plan crafted to address each individual’s specific issues and needs.  That plan includes classes 

addressing substance abuse patterns, mental health issues, histories of violence and trauma and all other barriers 

to self-reliance. 

Briefly describe the significance of your request to the San Marcos community: 

We believe the critical issue of our time in this region is family homelessness. Locally, the San Diego Regional 

Task Force on the Homeless reports there are more than 2,000 homeless children and their parents in San Diego 

County. The community you serve in San Marcos is sadly not immune to this plight.  A good number of the 

families we serve come from within the San Marcos city limits.  2/3 of those are children, accompanying their 

parents from shelter to shelter, or living out of their cars, rarely knowing where their next meal will come from.  

These families represent critical members of our North County community - flung into homelessness by drug 

addiction, domestic violence, illness, or a perfect storm of events. Addressing these critical issues for the most 

vulnerable families in San Marcos is essential for our community.  Please join us in investing in their futures 

and creating a community we can all be proud of. 

Please attach the following items.  

Both Mini-Grant & Regular: 
1. Budget for request (use SMCF Budget Worksheet) 

2. Annual Operating budget for the organization or unit 

3. Federal & State Tax ID numbers 

4. Board of Directors listing with affiliations 

5. Regular Grants Only: 

a. 1-2 page narrative 

b. First 2 pages of Federal 990 

c. Most recent year-end Statement or Audit including 

any management letters associated with Audit. 

d. Signature of President or Authorized Officer on 

Application 

e. Optional: letters of support 

Expected date project will begin/end: 7/01/15 

Date by which funds will be expended: 6/30/16 

 

Signature of President or Authorized Officer 

 

 

Tammy Megison, Executive Vice-President 1/5/15 

Name, Title                                    Date 

 

Submit Via Mail, In Person or Via Email to: 

San Marcos Community Foundation 

c/o City of San Marcos 

1 Civic Center Drive 

San Marcos, CA  92069 

Email (PDF Format): wkaserman@san-marcos.net 

 

SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

Grant Cover Page 
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SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
Budget Worksheet 

 

 
Wages and salaries $336,070  

    (1) Director of Programs @ 20% FTE 

    (1) Associate Director @ 50% FTE 

    (1) Director of Social Enterprises @ 50% FTE 

    (7) Case Managers @ 100% FTE  

Personnel benefits @ 30% $100,821  

Materials and supplies $7,500   

Program expenses and evaluation    

Rent and utilities   

Insurance    

Mileage    

Incentives and Special Events   ______ 

Indirect costs @ 15%  $66,659   

   

Total Budget for this PROJECT:  $511,049  

 

Grant Request Amount:  $10,000  

 

Is this a challenge grant?  NO        Could it be? N/A 

 

Please list any other funding sources for this project. 

**Indicate if funds are committed (C), conditional (CD), or pending (P). 

$90,000 Genentech Foundation   **     C 

$66,000 Forte for Kids   **     C 

$50,000 Isbrandt Family Trust   **     C 

$44,000 Alliance Healthcare Foundation   **     C 

$42,000 San Diego Shelter + Care  **    C 

$35,000 Diane and Bruce Halle Foundation  **    C 

$28,500 Welk Family Foundation  **    C 

$25,000 Bob Baker Toyota   **    C 

$21,000 Tri-City Healthcare Foundation  **   C 

$10,000 Stein Family Foundation  **   C 

$100,000 Donations and Contributions (2014-2015)    **   P  
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Solutions for Change  
Organizational Budget (2015) 

Income 
Fundraising $1,150,000 

Foundations $545,000 

Public Funds $366,552 

Donations $210,481 

Developer Fee $122,139 

Property Management $116,121 

Rent $360,645 

Laundry & Vending $7,000 

Damages & Cleaning Fees $2,625 

NSF & Late Charges $1,750 

Vacancy -$18,032 

Social Enterprise  $187,000 

 Total Income $3,051,281 

 Expenses 
Salaries $1,672,289 

Benefits $87,631 

Payroll Taxes $141,964 

Workers Comp $95,489 

Meetings, Training & Travel $45,000 

Farm Expense $86,551 

Advertising $52,000 

Fundraising Expense $375,000 

Professional Fees $66,617 

Property and Liability Insurance $93,000 

Rent $104,388 

Repairs/Maintenance $121,000 

Telephone/Communications $65,000 

Utilities $165,000 

Supplies $85,440 

Dues/Subscriptions $6,000 

Furniture/Equipment $0 

IT $48,000 

Payroll Expense $4,000 

Interest $134,090 

Taxes, license, permits & fees $65,000 

Total Expenses $3,513,459 

 Net Operating Income -$462,178 

Sale 1130 Melrose net $118,000 

Pledges Receivable $893,400 

Other Costs 
 Replacement Reserves -$40,033 

Principal Payments -$258,889 

Farm Capital Improvements -$250,000 

Net Cash Flow $0 
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2015 Board of Directors 

 

DUNCAN WALLACE 

Chairman 

Owner, Kand Medical 

 

GENE FORD 

Board Treasurer 

Retired, Bank Executive 

 

JERRY WATSON 

Board Secretary 

Retired, Communication Specialist 

 

WALTER KUCHINSKY 

Industrial Mechanic, Watkins Manufacturing Corporation 

 

SANDRA SHUDA 

Vice President of People Strategy & Services,  

Watkins Manufacturing Corporation 

 

CHRIS SMITH 

Director, St. Thomas More Catholic Church 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A North San Diego County Community 

 

1,000 Days to a Permanent Solution  One Family  One Community at a Time 
 

 

  

COMMUNITY 
LEADERSHIP TEAM 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
MARK KING, CEO & PRESIDENT 

TaylorMade Golf Company 
 

SAM ABED, MAYOR 
City of Escondido 

 

TONY BARON, DIRECTOR 
Azusa Pacific University 

 

 BOBBI DEPORTER, PRESIDENT 
 Quantum Learning Network 

 
JIM DESMOND, MAYOR 

 City of San Marcos 
 

GLORIA FOOTE, PARTNER 
Financial Focus 

 

 MATT HALL, MAYOR 
 City of Carlsbad 

 

  REV. TED HAMILTON, SENIOR PASTOR 
  New Life Presbyterian Church 

 

   DARRELL ISSA, CONGRESSMAN 
  49th Congressional District 

 
TERESA MOSELEY, VICE PRESIDENT 

Wells Fargo Bank 
 

   REV. MICHAEL RATAJCZAK, PASTOR 
   St. Thomas More Catholic Church 

 

  JUDY RITTER, MAYOR 
  City of Vista 

 
 SANDRA SHUDA, VP of HR 

  Watkins Manufacturing Corp. 
 

JIM WOOD, MAYOR 
City of Oceanside 
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Solutions for Change 
Regular Grant Request to the San Marcos 
Community Foundation 
 
 
Solutions for Change is a local nonprofit with 15 years of experience 
solving family homelessness in San Diego County.  Since its founding in 1999, Solutions 
has built an innovative model for solving family homelessness that differs dramatically from the 
multitude of strategies employed in the region - the traditional approaches of temporary shelters 
and the occasional meal that often perpetuate dependence on support with limited focus on 
breaking the causal cycle of homelessness.   
 
At Solutions for Change, we look at things differently.  Our focus is assisting the whole individual 
and solving the whole problem.  We know homelessness is not just about nutrition; not just 
about mental health; and, not just about having a roof over one’s head.  It is about supportive 
housing, along with a wealth of supportive services that will lead our families out of 
homelessness permanently.   
 
Solutions for Change does this through a 1,000-day partnership with our homeless men and 
women. The model, known as the Solutions University, blends affordable housing, educational 
opportunities, employment training and health-related solutions all within one cohesive strategic 
partnership that aims to solve family homelessness permanently.   
 
On any given day, more than 130 families and 300 children are participating in our programs 
(~500 individuals).  They come to us from a variety of North County communities – with a 
considerable number hailing from within the San Marcos city limits. Some represent a second or 
third generation of homelessness, held captive by lack of education and opportunity. Others are 
war veterans (increasingly women) who return wounded in many ways and who are struggling 
to exist in a world very different from the one they’ve just exited. And still others are people 
whose seemingly-solid middle or lower-middle class existence was suddenly torn from them by 
an unforeseen “perfect storm” of circumstances that may include death or disability of a spouse, 
divorce or separation, major illness or injury, spousal abuse, unemployment, birth of a special 
needs child, loss of support from extended family, inability to find comparably-priced housing 
after termination of a lease, and many other vicissitudes.   
 
These circumstances are often coupled with other complex, underlying issues.  Last year’s 
survey showed 39% of our residents suffered from some kind of substance abuse; 36% fled 
domestic violence; 25% experience mental illness; 16% have a physical disability; and, 1% have 
a learning disability.  These individuals are looking for a way out of the cycle of poverty. 
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These complex issues are met head-on through our Solutions Case Management program.  
These are the supportive services provided by our highly skilled corps of coaches who provide 
constant mentoring throughout the program, guiding each individual to their most productive, 
independent life. They follow a highly individualized plan crafted to address each individual’s 
specific issues and needs.  That plan includes classes addressing substance abuse patterns, 
mental health issues, histories of violence and trauma and all other barriers to self-reliance. 
Children are provided case management as well and enrolled in a variety of programs that help 
them with coping skills, self-esteem building, anger management and overall social skills – all 
culminating in a comprehensive suite of services that sets our children up for the long-term 
success they so deserve.   
 
These programs are carried out at our core facility, a 32,000 square foot complex on two acres 
in Vista, where we have 33 apartments, classrooms, a counseling center, and our administrative 
facilities. We have 133 Solutions-owned-and-operated affordable housing located throughout 
North San Diego County, with 77 new units on the horizon for 2015. 
 
Case management is provided under the direction of Executive Vice-President, Tammy 
Megison, who directs all programs at the agency. For 23 years, Tammy Megison has served in 
executive level management positions responsible for all facets of non-profit administration and 
operations. She oversees Solutions’ professional corps of case managers, who cumulatively 
have decades of experience and Master’s level training within the field.  They bring to Solutions 
expertise with family therapy, women’s issues, and the unique needs of military families, as well 
as vast experience with the substance abuse and mental health challenges within our complex 
population. 
 
For our families, these supports help to unravel the deep physical, psychological and emotional 
damage that often result from the circumstances under which they’ve lived.  The one-on-one 
guidance makes sure that any issues that arise are immediately addressed and worked on, 
while ensuring that families feel supported throughout their very difficult journey out of 
homelessness.   
 
Following the completion of the program, families are armed with the skills, knowledge and 
resources they require to establish themselves as self-sufficient, stable members of the 
community.  The program is highly successful, with 76% of the families entering our Intake and 
Access Center able to progress to our on-campus transitional housing (up from 65% several 
years ago).  From there, 93% cumulatively for the last three years have graduated.  These 
families exit with stable housing, $2,000 in savings, and the knowledge needed for long-term 
resilience.  
 
If you agree that our goals and yours are aligned, we would welcome the opportunity to partner, 
once more, with the San Marcos Community Foundation to benefit the homeless families of San 
Marcos.  Solutions for Change is grateful to the San Marcos Community Foundation for its past 
support and its consideration of this request. We welcome any inquiries and look forward to a 
successful, ongoing partnership benefitting families in need and all of San Marcos. 
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Solutions for Change, Inc.  
 
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solutions for Change, Inc., which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related 
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements.  
 
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Solutions for Change, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes 
in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Report on Supplementary Information 
 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole.  The accompanying supplementary information on pages 27 to 32 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.  The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organization, and 
is also not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the consolidated financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 15, 2014, on our 
consideration of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Solutions for Change, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 

 
 
San Diego, California 
May 15, 2014 
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2013 2012
Current Assets: (Notes 1, 2, 3 and 4)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,511           $ 192,936     
Grants and other receivables 75,434           83,246       
Related party receivables, current portion 420,343         -            
Pledges receivable, current portion 378,450         176,577     
Prepaid expenses and deposits 45,009           26,553       
Inventory 6,500             9,483         
Tenant trust funds 32,428           24,611       
Tenant security deposits 25,167           27,774       

Total Current Assets 1,081,842      541,180     

Property and Equipment, Net (Notes 1, 6 and 9) 13,769,134     13,639,842 

Other Assets: (Notes 1, 3, 4, 5 and 12)
Related party receivables, net, noncurrent 503,269         -            
Pledges receivable, net, noncurrent 258,529         500,941     
Operating reserve 89,200           89,200       
Replacement reserves 149,967         182,002     
Deposits 9,000             25,000       

Total Other Assets 1,009,965      797,143     

TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,860,941     $ 14,978,165 

ASSETS

 
 

SMCF Board 2/17/15 Item 2(b)3 Page 16 of 54



2013 2012
Current Liabilities: (Notes 1, 7 and 9)

Accounts payable $ 125,116         $ 93,527       
Accrued expenses 131,011         111,758     
Tenant trust funds 36,644           33,433       
Tenant security deposits 25,167           27,774       
Interest payable 17,733           8,587         
Lines-of-credit payable -                190,000     
Current portion of long-term liabilities 1,025,585      22,589       

Total Current Liabilities 1,361,256      487,668     

Long-Term Liabilities: (Notes 8 and 9)
Share of defiency in partnerships 39                 -            
Notes payable, net of current portion 12,448,759     12,292,268 
Interest payable 1,495,309      1,256,472   

Total Long-Term Liabilities 13,944,107     13,548,740 

Total Liabilities 15,305,363     14,036,408 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 11 and 12)

Minority Interest in Subsidiary (2,451)            (32)            

Net Assets: (Notes 1 and 10)
Unrestricted (163,517)        245,078     
Temporarily restricted 721,546         696,711     

Total Net Assets 558,029         941,789     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 15,860,941     $ 14,978,165 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
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Temporarily Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

Support and Revenue:
Contributions $ 1,640,180 $ 201,413    $ 1,841,593 $ 1,949,680 $ 166,753    $ 2,116,433 
Grants 748,395    -                748,395    456,085    -                456,085    
Rental income 428,259    -                428,259    304,813    -                304,813    
In-kind donations 294,845    -                294,845    208,241    -                208,241    
Developer fees 689,861    -                689,861    150,000    -                150,000    
Social enterprise 33,661      -                33,661      33,782      -                33,782      
Interest and miscellaneous 15,742      -                15,742      33,396      -                33,396      
Net assets released from restriction 176,578    (176,578)   -                394,596    (394,596)   -                

Total Support and Revenue 4,027,521 24,835      4,052,356 3,530,593 (227,843)   3,302,750 

Operating Expenses:
Program services 3,088,448 -                3,088,448 2,458,288 -                2,458,288 
Fundraising 383,412    -                383,412    364,326    -                364,326    
Management and general 266,096    -                266,096    214,675    -                214,675    

Total Operating Expenses 3,737,956 -                3,737,956 3,037,289 -                3,037,289 

Change in Net Assets Before Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) 289,565    24,835      314,400    493,304    (227,843)   265,461    

Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):
Minority interest in deficit of revenue

and support over expenses of subsidiary 2,419        -                2,419        2,404        -                2,404        
Partnership loss (39)            -                (39)            -                -                -                
Depreciation (461,703)   -                (461,703)   (379,350)   -                (379,350)   
Interest  - residual receipts debt (238,837)   -                (238,837)   (182,934)   -                (182,934)   

Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) (698,160)   -                (698,160)   (559,880)   -                (559,880)   

Change in Net Assets (408,595)   24,835      (383,760)   (66,576)     (227,843)   (294,419)   

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 245,078    696,711    941,789    311,654    924,554    1,236,208 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ (163,517)   $ 721,546    $ 558,029    $ 245,078    $ 696,711    $ 941,789    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

20122013
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Solutions Solutions Total
For Change Family Program Management
Programs Center Services and General Fundraising Total

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wages $ 1,498,691    $ 23,004         $ 1,521,695    $ 58,651         $ 78,976         $ 1,659,322    
In-kind expense 294,845       -                    294,845       -               -                    294,845       
Fundraising expenses -                    -                    -                    -               284,967       284,967       
Insurance 154,980       26,121         181,101       17,220         12,504         210,825       
Repairs and maintenance 137,348       27,867         165,215       15,261         -                    180,476       
Utilities and refuse removal 84,177         56,257         140,434       9,353           -                    149,787       
Professional fees 92,527         -                    92,527         45,796         -                    138,323       
Interest 128,547       8,587           137,134       -               -                    137,134       
Payroll taxes 118,724       3,000           121,724       4,304           6,456           132,484       
Meetings and seminars 49,946         -                    49,946         74,918         -                    124,864       
Rent 104,050       -                    104,050       -               -                    104,050       
Advertising 61,108         -                    61,108         144               -                    61,252         
Telephone 41,269         11,287         52,556         4,585           -                    57,141         
Office expense 43,365         100               43,465         7,079           -                    50,544         
Supplies 37,378         800               38,178         -               -                    38,178         
Automobile and truck 28,968         -                    28,968         -               -                    28,968         
Other expense 19,726         -                    19,726         -               -                    19,726         
Cost of goods sold 17,676         -                    17,676         -               -                    17,676         
Bank and merchant fees -                    -                    -                    17,105         -                    17,105         
Property fees -                    -                    -                    10,796         -                    10,796         
Dues and subscriptions 8,150           -                    8,150           -               -                    8,150           
Postage and printing 5,501           -                    5,501           -               -                    5,501           
Payroll processing 2,374           -                    2,374           509               509               3,392           
Miscellaneous 2,075           -                    2,075           375               -                    2,450           

Total Operating Expenses 2,931,425    157,023       3,088,448    266,096       383,412       3,737,956    

Nonoperating Expenses:
Depreciation 296,400       165,303       461,703       -                    -                    461,703       
Interest - residual receipts debt 125,996       112,841       238,837       -                    -                    238,837       

Total Nonoperating Expenses 422,396       278,144       700,540       -                    -                    700,540       

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 3,353,821    $ 435,167       $ 3,788,988    $ 266,096       $ 383,412       $ 4,438,496    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Program Services Supporting Services
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Solutions Solutions Total
For Change Family Program Management
Programs Center Services and General Fundraising Total

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wages $ 1,100,061     $ 23,004          $ 1,123,065     $ 58,651          $ 78,976          $ 1,260,692     
Fundraising expenses -                -                -                -                265,957        265,957        
In-kind expense 208,241        -                208,241        -                -                208,241        
Rent 177,620        -                177,620        -                -                177,620        
Insurance 101,278        26,220          127,498        11,253          12,504          151,255        
Repairs and maintenance 78,600          31,281          109,881        8,442            -                118,323        
Utilities and refuse removal 49,350          56,133          105,483        5,483            -                110,966        
Payroll taxes 92,308          3,000            95,308          4,304            6,456            106,068        
Meetings and seminars 39,873          -                39,873          59,810          -                99,683          
Professional fees 59,238          -                59,238          30,436          -                89,674          
Advertising 84,944          -                84,944          157               -                85,101          
Bad debt expense 70,250          -                70,250          -                -                70,250          
Supplies 64,418          800               65,218          175               -                65,393          
Office expense 48,560          549               49,109          5,396            -                54,505          
Telephone 36,195          9,469            45,664          4,022            -                49,686          
Interest 39,431          8,587            48,018          -                -                48,018          
Automobile and truck 38,112          -                38,112          -                -                38,112          
Bank and merchant fees -                -                -                14,705          -                14,705          
Property fees -                -                -                10,716          -                10,716          
Dues and subscriptions 5,131            -                5,131            -                -                5,131            
Postage and printing 3,616            -                3,616            -                -                3,616            
Payroll processing 2,019            -                2,019            433               433               2,885            
Miscellaneous -                -                -                693               -                693               

Total Operating Expenses 2,299,245     159,043        2,458,288     214,675        364,326        3,037,289     

Nonoperating Expenses:
Depreciation 220,656        158,694        379,350        -                    -                    379,350        
Interest - residual receipts debt 70,093          112,841        182,934        -                    -                    182,934        

Total Nonoperating Expenses 290,749        271,535        562,284        -                    -                    562,284        

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 2,589,994     $ 430,578        $ 3,020,572     $ 214,675        $ 364,326        $ 3,599,573     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Program Services Supporting Services
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2013 2012
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets $ (383,760)     $ (294,419)     
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 461,703      379,350      
Partnership loss 39               -                  
Interest - residual receipts debt 238,837      182,934      
Minority interest deficit of revenue and support over

expenses of subsidiary (2,419)         (2,404)         
(Increase) Decrease in:

Grants and other receivables 7,812          (19,550)       
Pledges receivable, net 40,539        247,036      
Prepaid expenses and deposits (18,456)       21,280        
Inventory 2,983          (9,483)         
Tenant trust funds (7,817)         9,429          
Tenant security deposits 2,607          1,050          

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable 31,589        17,101        
Accrued expenses 19,253        49,759        
Tenant trust funds 3,211          (12,435)       
Interest payable 9,146          -                  
Tenant security deposits (2,607)         (3,860)         

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities 402,660      565,788      

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (590,995)     (2,982,265)  
Related party receivables advance (923,612)     -                  
Withdrawals from (deposits to) replacement reserves, net 32,035        (47,025)       
Refund of deposits 16,000        52,000        

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,466,572)  (2,977,290)  

(Continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from lines-of-credit payable -                  190,000      
Proceeds from notes payable 1,068,184   2,081,650   
Payments on notes payable (98,697)       (78,929)       

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 969,487      2,192,721   

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (94,425)       (218,781)     

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 192,936      411,717      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 98,511        $ 192,936      

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest (Note 1) $ 127,988      $ 56,605        
Cash paid for Franchise tax $ 800             $ 800             

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing Activities:
Lines of credit payable converted to notes payable $ 190,000      $ -              

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: 
 

Organization 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization include the accounts of the following entities: 
 

Solutions for Change, Inc. 
 
Solutions for Change, Inc. (“Solutions for Change”), formerly North County Solutions for Change, was 
incorporated in the State of California on November 15, 1999.  The mission of the Organization is to end 
family homelessness in North San Diego County. The Organization is supported primarily through donor 
contributions and grants. 
 
Solutions Family Center, L.P. 
 
Solutions Family Center, L.P. (the “Partnership”) was formed as a limited partnership under the laws of the 
State of California on December 18, 2000.  The Partnership was established for the purpose and intent of 
constructing and operating a rental housing project.  The rental housing project was placed into service in 
November 2004 and is located in Vista, California.  The project consists of 33 units.  The Organization is 
the General Partner and owns 99% of the Partnership.   
 
Limited Liability Companies 

 
Solutions Vista Terrace, LLC 
 
Solutions Vista Terrace, LLC has a 0.005% interest in SFC Vista Terrace, L.P., which has been 
recorded on the equity method.  Its sole member is Solutions for Change. 
 
Solutions Parkview, LLC 
 
Solutions Parkview, LLC has a 0.02% interest in Parkview San Marcos II, L.P., which has been 
recorded on the equity method.  Its sole member is Solutions for Change. 

 
Solutions for Change - Our Mission and our Model 
 
In 2013, the Organization completed a plan outlining the Organization’s vision, priorities and implementation 
strategies for the next several years. The results of this work, conducted over several months and approved by 
the Board of Directors, produced the Solutions for Change Vision, Priorities and Plan to Solve Family 
Homelessness. This document will guide the Organization moving forward in its efforts to achieve its mission. 
Of particular note, the Organization made two larger organizational changes, which were reviewed and 
approved by the IRS.  First, it changed its name from North County Solutions for Change, Inc. to Solutions for 
Change, Inc. and second, the Organization formally revised its mission statement from “to end family 
homelessness in North San Diego County” to “The mission of Solutions for Change is to solve family 
homelessness – one family, one community at a time”.  These changes will allow Solutions for Change to 
better carry out its purpose. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued) 
 

Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Solutions for Change, Inc., Solutions Family 
Center, L.P. and the Limited Liability Companies, Solutions Vista Terrace, LLC and Solutions Parkview, LLC.  
All material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Method of Accounting 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The consolidated financial statements present information regarding the financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently 
restricted net assets. 
 
 Unrestricted net assets – Net assets not subject to donor imposed stipulations 
 
 Temporarily restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that will be met by 

actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time.  When a donor stipulated time restriction ends or 
a purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted 
net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

 
 Permanently restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations requiring that they 

be maintained permanently by the Organization.  The income from these assets is available for either 
general operations or specific programs as specified by the donor. 

 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair 
value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value 
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market 
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within 
Level 1 or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions 
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).  The Organization had no financial 
instruments as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
 
Management believes that all receivables were fully collectible; therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts 
was recorded as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is in substance, 
unconditional.  Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets 
if the restriction expires in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted 
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the 
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets. 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventory consists of operating supplies related to the operations of the Solutions Farm.  Inventory is valued at 
the lower cost (first-in, first-out) or market. 
 
Capitalization and Depreciation 
 
The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $2,000 for property and equipment at cost, while 
donations of property and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values.  Such donations are reported 
as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose.  Assets donated 
with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and 
equipment are reported as restricted support.  Absent donor stipulations regarding how long these donated 
assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or 
acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor.  The Organization reclassifies temporarily 
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time.  Property and equipment is depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful asset lives as follows: 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Capitalization and Depreciation (Continued) 
 

Land improvements 20 years 
Buildings and improvements 5 - 40 years 
Furniture and fixtures 7 - 10 years 
Machinery and equipment 5 - 7 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

 
Depreciation totaled $461,703 and $379,350 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to operations as incurred.  Upon sale or disposition of 
property and equipment, the asset account is relieved of the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is 
charged with depreciation taken prior to the sale and any resultant gain or loss is credited or charged to 
earnings. 
 
Interest totaling $-0- and $36,620 has been capitalized and is included in buildings and improvements for the 
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Impairment of Real Estate 
 
The Organization reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable.  Recoverability is 
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the real estate to the future net undiscounted cash flows 
expected to be generated by the rental property including any estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition 
of the real estate.  If the real estate is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured 
at the amount by which the carrying amount of real estate exceeds the fair value of such property.  There were 
no impairment losses recognized in 2013 and 2012. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated unpaid vacation totaling $51,781 and $25,494 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, is 
accrued as earned and included in accrued expenses. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Tenant Trust Funds 
 
Tenant trust funds represent amounts held on behalf of tenants.  In accordance with the funding agreement, 
the Organization holds 10% of the tenant rent in trust for tenants as a “set aside” to be used for rental of 
permanent housing when the tenant successfully completes the program.  The Organization also maintains 
savings accounts for program participants.  The tenant trust funds consist of the following at December 31: 
 
  2013  2012 
     
Set aside funds $ 4,216 $ 8,822 
Client savings funds  32,428  24,611 

 $ 36,644 $ 33,433 
 
Tenant Security Deposits 
 
Tenant security deposits are held by the project and these funds are restricted to the extent of the tenant 
security deposit liability of $25,167 and $27,774 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Rental income is recognized for apartment rents as it accrues.  Advance receipts of rental income are deferred 
or classified as liabilities until earned. 
 
Grant revenue is recognized in the period in which the related work is performed in accordance with the terms 
of the grant.  Grants receivable are recorded when revenue earned under a grant exceeds the cash received.  
Deferred revenue is recorded when cash received under a grant exceeds the revenue earned. 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets 
 
The Organization’s unrestricted net assets include depreciation on property and equipment and accrued interest 
on loans for which the interest may only be paid from residual receipts.  The amounts included in the 
unrestricted net assets totaled $461,703 and $379,350 for depreciation and $238,837 and $182,934 for interest 
on residual receipts debt, for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Donated Services and Materials 
 
The Organization utilizes the services of many volunteers throughout the year.  This contribution of services 
by the volunteers is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless the services received (a) 
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills which are provided by individuals 
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.  The donated 
services for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, did not meet the requirements above, therefore no 
amounts were recognized in the consolidated financial statements. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Donated Services and Materials (Continued) 
 
The Organization received in-kind contributions totaling $294,845 and $208,241 for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which have been recorded as contributions revenue and 
operating expenses in the statement of activities. 
 
Allocated Expenses 
 
Expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting services classification on the basis 
of internal records and estimates made by the Organization’s management. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
Solutions for Change is a public charity and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.  Solutions for 
Change believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any 
uncertain tax positions that are material to the consolidated financial statements.  Solutions for Change is not a 
private foundation. 
 
The Partnership and the Limited Liability Companies have recorded no provision or benefit for income taxes 
since taxable income (loss) passes through to, and is reportable by, the partners individually. 
 
Solutions for Change’s Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax and the Partnership’s tax returns for 
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, and 2010 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue 
Service and State taxing authorities, generally three to four years after the returns were filed. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured 
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  The Organization believes it is not 
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all investment 
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
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Note 1 - Organization and Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued) 
 

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organization has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through May 15, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were 
available to be issued, and concluded that there were no events or transactions that needed to be disclosed 
except as disclosed in Note 13. 
 
Reclassification 
 
The Organization has reclassified certain prior year information to conform with the current year presentation. 
 

Note 2 - Grants and Other Receivables: 
 
Grants and other receivables consist of the following at December 31: 

  2013  2012 
     
State of California $ 44,328 $ 23,674 
County of San Diego  16,396  49,037 
Other  8,278  5,368 
City of Vista  6,432  1,000 
HUD SHP  -  4,167 

Total Grants and Other Receivables $ 75,434 $ 83,246 
 
Note 3 - Pledges Receivable: 
 
Pledges receivable consist of the following at December 31: 

  2013  2012 
     
Due in less than one year $ 378,450 $ 176,577 
     
Due in one to five years  266,800  525,000 
Less: Discounts to present value  (8,271)  (24,059) 

Due in more than one year  258,529  500,941 
Pledges Receivable, Net $ 636,979 $ 677,518 

 
Pledges receivable have been discounted to their net present value using a discount rate of 3.00% for the years 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
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Note 4 – Related Party Receivables: 
 
Related party receivables consist of the following at December 31: 

  2013  2012 
The note receivable, which originated on July 1, 2012 and was 
amended effective April 11, 2013, from SFC Vista Terrace, L.P., in 
the original amount of $798,438 ($433,415 and $-0- advanced as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively) bears interest at 3% per 
annum. Principal and interest are payable from net cash flow and no 
payments are expected to be received on the note for the next five 
years.  Principal and accrued interest are due July 1, 2067.  Secured by 
a deed of trust. Accrued interest totaled $5,697 and $-0- at December 
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. $ 439,112 $ - 
     
Developer fee receivable from SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. in the original 
amount of $612,000.  The developer fee is paid from Limited Partner 
capital installments with any unpaid amounts payable from available 
cash flow.  484,500  - 

Total Related Party Receivables  923,612  - 
Less: Current portion  (420,343)  - 

Related Party Receivables, Noncurrent $ 503,269 $ - 
 
Note 5 - Restricted Reserves: 
 
According to the Partnership, loan and other regulatory agreements, the Organization is required to maintain the 
following reserves: 
 

Operating Reserve 
 
The Partnership is required to fund an operating reserve up to the amount of $89,200.  There is no annual 
funding requirement for this reserve.  The operating reserve balance totaled $89,200 at December 31, 2013 and 
2012. 
 
Replacement Reserves 
 
The Partnership is required to fund a replacement reserve in the initial amount of $20,000 in accordance with 
the regulatory agreement with the City of Vista.  In accordance with the operating budget approved by the 
Department of Housing and Community Development, the Partnership is required to fund a replacement 
reserve of $16,386 annually beginning March 24, 2005.  The reserve requirement was reduced by the 
Department of Housing and Community Development by $20,000 to offset the reserve mandated by the City 
of Vista.  All replacement reserve requirements were met as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.  The replacement 
reserve balance totaled $16,436 and $136,680 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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Note 5 - Restricted Reserves: (Continued) 
 

Replacement Reserves (Continued) 
 
The Organization is required to maintain replacement reserve accounts for each property obtained through 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program and HOME Investment Partnership Program funding.  These amounts 
vary by property and must be funded annually beginning two months subsequent to the completion of 
rehabilitation.  All replacement reserve requirements were met as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.  The 
replacement reserve balance totaled $133,531 and $45,322 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 

Note 6 - Property and Equipment: 
 
Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31: 

  2013  2012 
     
Land $ 2,736,678 $ 2,700,809 
Land improvements  356,395  356,395 
Buildings and improvements  12,567,727  12,077,747 
Furniture and fixtures  144,615  144,615 
Machinery and equipment  203,576  138,430 
Vehicles  98,947  98,947 

Subtotal  16,107,938  15,516,943 
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (2,338,804)  (1,877,101) 

Property and Equipment, Net $ 13,769,134 $ 13,639,842 
 
Note 7 - Lines-of-Credit: 
 
The Organization had a line-of-credit with Pacific Western Bank in the amount of $100,000 with interest at 6%.  
The line-of-credit expired on July 7, 2013, and was converted to a note payable in 2013.  The outstanding 
balance totaled $-0- and $100,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
The Organization had a line-of-credit with Pacific Western Bank in the amount of $90,000 with interest at 6%.  
The line-of-credit was converted to a note payable in 2013.  The outstanding balance totaled $-0- and $90,000 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Note 8 - Investments in Partnerships: 
 
Solutions for Change is the sole member of two limited liability companies The Limited Liability Companies 
own general partner interests in partnerships that they account for on the equity method, which are their entire 
assets and liabilities. The following are the balances in the Limited Liability Companies’ partnership tax basis 
capital accounts of the partnerships as of December 31: 
 

  2013  2012 
     
SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. (.005%) $ 39 $ - 
Parkview San Marcos II, L.P. (.02%)  -  - 

Total Share of Deficiency in Partnerships $ 39 $ - 
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Note 8 - Investments in Partnerships: (Continued) 
 
Solutions for Change provided development and management services to the partnerships for which it earned 
the following amounts for the years ended December 31: 
 

  2013 

  
Management 

Fees  
Other 

Services  
Developer 

Fees 
       
SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. $ 7,252 $ 99,741 $ 612,000 
Parkview San Marcos II, L.P.  -  -  27,861 

 $ 7,252 $ 99,741 $ 639,861 
 
 

  2012 

  
Management 

Fees  
Other 

Services  
Developer 

Fees 
       
SFC Vista Terrace, L.P. $ - $ - $ - 
Parkview San Marcos II, L.P.  -  -  - 

 $ - $ - $ - 
 
Note 9 - Notes Payable: 
 
Notes payable consist of the following at December 31: 

  2013  2012 
Solutions for Change, Inc.     
     
North Island Financial Credit Union payable in monthly installments 
of $638 including interest at 6.5%, due December 15, 2015, secured 
by vehicle. $ 12,413 $ 19,748 
     
Promissory note, which was originated on March 29, 2006, held by 
the Department of Housing and Community Development in the 
original amount of $924,850.  Of this amount, $864,542 and $47,584 
were provided for the purchase of the East Vista Way property.  The 
note bears interest at 3% per annum.  Repayment of principal and 
accrued interest are deferred as long as the Organization operates the 
facility as an emergency shelter or transition housing in compliance 
the terms of the agreement.  In the event that the compliance 
standards are met, the loan will be forgiven at the maturity date of 
March 29, 2016 for the first draw and August 25, 2016 for the second 
draw. Secured by a deed of trust.  Accrued interest totaled $213,732 
and $186,368 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  912,126  912,126 
     
(Continued)     
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued) 
  2013  2012 
Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)     
     
The loan payable, which originated September 24, 2009, is held by 
the County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $357,762.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of September 24, 2024. Secured by a deed of trust. $ 351,356 $ 351,356 
     
The loan payable, which originated November 16, 2009, is held by 
the County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $79,156.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of November 16, 2024. Secured by a deed of trust.  79,156  79,156 
     
The loan payable, which originated September 3, 2009, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $301,084.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of September 3, 2024. Secured by a deed of trust.  301,084  301,084 
     
The loan payable, which originated February 3, 2010, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $461,369.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of February 3, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust.  456,518  456,518 
     
The loan payable, which originated February 26, 2010, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $132,704.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of February 26, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust.  129,342  129,342 
     
(Continued)     
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued) 
  2013  2012 
Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)     
     
The loan payable, which originated January 7, 2010, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $286,010.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of January 7, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust. $ 278,900 $ 278,900 
     
The loan payable, which originated August 4, 2010, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $332,847.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of August 4, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust.  323,095  323,095 
     
The loan payable, which originated July 22, 2010, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $392,272.  The loan is 
noninterest bearing.  In the event that all terms and obligations of the 
regulatory agreement have been met, the loan will be forgiven at the 
maturity date of July 22, 2025. Secured by a deed of trust.  375,310  375,310 
     
The loan payable, which originated April 13, 2011, is held by the 
County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $3,421,452 ($3,408,032 
advanced as of December 31, 2013).  The loan bears interest at 3% 
per annum.  Principal and accrued interest are payable from residual 
receipts (50%) from the Primrose property with the remaining 
residual receipts (50%) to be held in a segregated operating reserve 
account.  The Primrose property was placed in service in 2012.  
Principal and accrued interest are due April 1, 2066.  Secured by a 
deed of trust.  Accrued interest totaled $229,069 and $130,437 at 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  3,408,032  2,848,634 
     
(Continued)     
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued) 
  2013  2012 
Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)     
     
The loan payable, which originated April 1, 2011, is held by the 
Clearinghouse Community Development Financial Institution in the 
original amount of $1,100,000.  Principal and accrued interest are 
payable in monthly installments of $6,419 including interest at 5.75% 
beginning March 1, 2012.  Principal and accrued interest are due May 
1, 2021.  Secured by a deed of trust.  Accrued interest totaled $6,420 
and $-0- at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. $ 1,024,042 $ 1,027,587 
     
The loan payable, which originated October 19, 2012, is held by 
First-Citizens Bank & Trust in the original amount of $496,000.  
Principal and accrued interest are payable in monthly installments of 
$3,155 including interest at 4.5%, beginning November 24, 2012.  
Principal and accrued interest are due October 24, 2019.  Secured by 
a deed of trust.  474,326  492,603 
     
The loan payable, which originated on October 23, 2012, is held by 
Veritas Services LLC in the original amount of $120,000.  Payable in 
monthly interest only payments at 8.5%.  Principal and accrued 
interest are due November 1, 2014.  Secured by a deed of trust.  120,000  120,000 
     
The loan payable, which originated January 16, 2013, is held by 
First-Citizens Bank & Trust in the original amount of $192,000.  
Principal and accrued interest are payable in monthly installments of 
$1,221 including interest at 4.5%.  Principal and accrued interest are 
due January 16, 2020.  Secured by a deed of trust.  Accrued interest 
totaled $723 and $-0- at December 31, and 2012, respectively.  186,455  - 
     
The loan payable, which was originated on October 28, 2013, 
converted from a line of credit dated July 7, 2011, held by Pacific 
Western Bank in the original amount of $100,000, reduced to 
$90,000 upon conversion.  Principal and accrued interest are payable 
in monthly installments of $2,741 including interest at the bank’s 
variable rate (6.0% at December 31, 2013).  Principal and accrued 
interest are due October 7, 2016.  Secured by a commercial security 
agreement.  Accrued interest totaled $443 and $-0- at December 31, 
and 2012, respectively.  85,511  - 
     
(Continued)     
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued) 
  2013  2012 
Solutions for Change, Inc. (Continued)     
     
The loan payable, which was originated on February 28, 2013, 
converted from a line of credit dated November 29, 2011, held by 
Pacific Western Bank in the original amount of $90,000, reduced to 
$80,000 upon conversion.  Principal and accrued interest are payable 
in monthly installments of $2,880 including interest at 6.0%.  
Principal and accrued interest are due August 28, 2015.  Unsecured.  
Accrued interest totaled $310 and $-0- at December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. $ 57,280 $ - 
     
The loan payable, which was originated on December 31, 2013, held 
by Mr. Barter in the original amount of $300,000.  Interest is accrued 
at 5.0% per annum.  Principal and accrued interest are payable by 
February 15, 2014.  Accrued interest totaled $1,250 and $-0- at 
December 31, and 2012, respectively.  300,000  - 

Total Solutions for Change, Inc.  8,874,946  7,715,459 
     
Solutions Family Center, L.P.     
     
The mortgage note, which was originated on March 8, 2005, is held 
by the California Department of Housing and Community 
Development (MHP) in the original amount of $2,044,512.  The 
note bears interest at 3% per annum.  Payments in the amount of 
forty-two hundredths of one percent (.42%) per annum on the 
unpaid principal balance of the loan are payable beginning 
December 31, 2005 and continuing annually thereafter up to the 
twenty-ninth anniversary of the interest payment date.  
Commencing on the thirtieth (30th) anniversary of the interest 
payment date and continuing annually thereafter, payments shall 
equal the lesser of (1) the full amount of interest accruing on the 
unpaid principal balance during the year, or (2) the amount 
determined by the lender as to be necessary to cover the costs of 
continued monitoring of the compliance requirements under the 
loan.  In addition, the note may require additional payments from 
net cash flow under the terms of the regulatory agreement.  The 
note is due March 2060. Secured by a deed of trust.  Accrued 
interest totaled $463,164 and $410,415 at December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively, and the required interest payments totaled 
$8,587 and $8,587 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively.  2,044,512  2,044,512 
     
(Continued)     
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued) 
  2013  2012 
Solutions Family Center, L.P. (Continued)     
     
The mortgage note, which was originated on July 30, 2003, is held 
by the San Diego County Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the original amount of $957,000.  The note bears 
interest at 3% per annum.  Principal and accrued interest are payable 
from residual receipts, as defined in the agreement, calculated 
annually.  Principal and accrued interest are due July 2058.  Secured 
by a deed of trust.  Accrued interest totaled $289,722 and $261,012 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. $ 957,000 $ 957,000 
     
The mortgage note, which was originated on July 28, 2003, is held 
by the City of Vista in the original amount of $550,000.  The note 
bears interest at 3% per annum.  Principal and accrued interest are 
payable from residual receipts, as defined in the agreement, 
calculated annually.  Principal and accrued interest are due July 
2058.  Secured by a deed of trust.  Accrued interest totaled $164,986 
and $148,486 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  550,000  550,000 
     
The mortgage note, which was originated on July 31, 2003, is held by 
the City of Escondido in the original amount of $375,100.  The note is 
non-interest bearing.  Principal is due July 2058.  Secured by a deed of 
trust.  375,100  375,100 
     
The mortgage note, which was originated on July 24, 2003, is held 
by the Bank of America for the Affordable Housing Program (AHP) 
in the original amount of $176,700.  The note is non-interest 
bearing provided that all compliance requirements of the loan are 
met.  Principal is due July 2021.  Secured by a deed of trust.  176,700  176,700 
     
The mortgage note, which was originated on April 9, 2004, is held by 
the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
in the amount of $496,086.  The note bears interest at 3% per annum.  
In the event that all terms and obligations of the note have been met, 
the loan will be forgiven at the maturity date of April 19, 2014.  
Secured by a deed of trust.  Accrued interest totaled $143,223 and 
$128,341 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  496,086  496,086 

Total Solutions Family Center, L.P.  4,599,398  4,599,398 
Total Notes Payable  13,474,344  12,314,857 
Less: Current Portion  (1,025,585)  (22,589) 

Notes Payable, Long-Term $ 12,448,759 $ 12,292,268 
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Note 9 - Notes Payable: (Continued) 
 
The future principal payments on the notes payable are as follows: 
 

Years Ended 
December 31  

Solutions for 
Change, Inc.  

Solutions 
Family 

Center, L.P.  Total 
       

2014 $ 529,499 $ 496,086 $ 1,025,585 
2015  104,785  -  104,785 
2016  985,022  -  985,022 
2017  48,630  -  48,630 
2018  51,154  -  51,154 

Thereafter  7,155,856  4,103,312  11,259,168 
Total $ 8,874,946 $ 4,599,398 $ 13,474,344 

 
Note 10 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at December 31: 
 

  2013  2012 
     
Pledges receivable - Operations $ 636,978 $ 677,519 
Building improvements for Vista Terrace  84,568  19,192 
 $ 721,546 $ 696,711 

 
Net assets in the amount of $176,578 and $394,596 were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses 
and events satisfying the purpose or time restrictions specified by donors for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 
Note 11 - Contingencies: 
 
The Partnership entered into loan agreements with several agencies for the purpose of building and maintaining 
the tenant housing facilities.  These agreements specify requirements for the building maintenance.  The loans 
will be forgiven at the end of the loan term if all requirements have been met.  In the event that the Partnership 
does not comply with the agreement, sells the property, or desists using the facility for its original intended 
purposes, these notes may be called. 
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Note 12 - Commitments: 
 

Leases 
 

Office Space 
 
In 2004, the Organization began occupying approximately 7,200 square feet of donated office space at the 
Center’s facility located at 702 West California Avenue, Vista, California.  Estimated fair market value of 
the donated facilities in 2013 and 2012 was $129,600.  Due to the elimination of intercompany transactions 
during the consolidation process, the rent accrual and expense are not reflected in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

 
Vehicle 
 
The Organization leases a vehicle under a three year lease agreement beginning November 2011 and ending 
in January 2015, with a monthly payment of $602.  Rent expense totaled $7,224 for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
 

Contracts 
 
On June 1, 2012, the Organization entered into a five year employment contract with the President, which 
provides a base salary plus an annual bonus based on performance and not to exceed 20% of the current salary.  
After the five years, there is an option to renew annually. 
 
On June 1, 2012, the Organization entered into a five year employment contract with the Vice President, which 
provides a base salary plus an annual bonus based on performance and not to exceed 15% of the current salary.  
After the five years, there is an option to renew annually. 

 
Property Purchase Agreement 
 
The Organization has entered into purchase agreements for various real property.  In connection with these 
agreements it has made deposits totaling $9,000 and $25,000 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
 

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments related to the commitments: 
 

Years Ended 
December 31 

  
Leases  Contracts  Total 

        
2014  $ 7,224 $ 225,000 $ 232,224 
2015   602  225,000  225,602 
2016   -  225,000  225,000 
2017   -  112,500  112,500 

Total  $ 7,826 $ 787,500 $ 795,326 
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Note 13 - Subsequent Events: 
 
On February 7, 2014, the Organization formed, and is the sole member of, Solutions Weitzel, LLC, a California 
limited liability company.  The new entity is an income tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and Section 23071(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.  Its purpose is to 
serve as the managing partner of one or more limited partnerships that own, operate and manage various 
multifamily affordable housing projects located in California.  As of the date the consolidated financial statements 
were available to be issued, no operating activities have occurred within this new entity. 
 
On February 14, 2014, the Organization formed, and is the sole member of, Solutions Escondido Boulevard, LLC, 
a California limited liability company.  The new entity is an income tax exempt organization under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23071(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.  Its 
purpose is to serve as the managing partner of one or more limited partnerships that own, operate and manage 
various multifamily affordable housing projects located in California.  As of the date the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued, no operating activities have occurred within this new entity. 
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Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,982          $ 1,529            $ -                     $ 98,511          
Grants and other receivables 75,434          -                     -                     75,434          
Related party receivables, current portion 420,343        -                     -                     420,343        
Pledges receivable, current portion 378,450        -                     -                     378,450        
Prepaid expenses and deposits 43,905          1,104            -                     45,009          
Inventory 6,500            -                     -                     6,500            
Tenant trust funds 32,428          -                     -                     32,428          
Tenant security deposits 16,758          8,409            -                     25,167          

Total Current Assets 1,070,800    11,042          -                     1,081,842    

Property and Equipment, Net 8,853,963    4,915,171    -                     13,769,134  

Other Assets: 
Investment in subsidiary (645,788)      -                     645,788        -                     
Related party receivables, net, noncurrent 503,269        -                     -                     503,269        
Pledges receivable, net, noncurrent 258,529        -                     -                     258,529        
Operating reserve -                     89,200          -                     89,200          
Replacement reserves 133,531        16,436          -                     149,967        
Deposit 9,000            -                     -                     9,000            

Total Other Assets 258,541        105,636        645,788        1,009,965    

TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,183,304  $ 5,031,849    $ 645,788        $ 15,860,941  

Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated

Solutions

ASSETS
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Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 117,121         $ 7,995             $ -                     $ 125,116         
Accrued expenses 131,011         -                     -                     131,011         
Tenant trust funds 33,453           3,191             -                     36,644           
Tenant security deposits 16,758           8,409             -                     25,167           
Interest payable 9,146             8,587             -                     17,733           
Current portion of long-term liabilities 529,499         496,086         -                     1,025,585      

Total Current Liabilities 836,988         524,268         -                     1,361,256      

Long-Term Liabilities:
Share of defiency in partnerships 39                  -                     -                     39                  
Notes payable, net of current portion 8,345,447      4,103,312      -                     12,448,759    
Interest payable 442,801         1,052,508      -                     1,495,309      

Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,788,287      5,155,820      -                     13,944,107    

Total Liabilities 9,625,275      5,680,088      -                     15,305,363    

Minority Interest in Subsidiary -                     -                     (2,451)            (2,451)            

Net Assets: 
Unrestricted (163,517)        (648,239)        648,239         (163,517)        
Temporarily restricted 721,546         -                     -                     721,546         

Total Net Assets 558,029         (648,239)        648,239         558,029         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 10,183,304    $ 5,031,849      $ 645,788         $ 15,860,941    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated
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Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 192,377         $ 559                $ -                     $ 192,936         
Grants and other receivables 86,201           -                     (2,955)            83,246           
Pledges receivable, current portion 176,577         -                     -                     176,577         
Prepaid expenses and deposits 25,575           978                -                     26,553           
Inventory 9,483             -                     -                     9,483             
Tenant trust funds 24,611           -                     -                     24,611           
Tenant security deposits 15,786           11,988           -                     27,774           

Total Current Assets 530,610         13,525           (2,955)            541,180         

Property and Equipment, Net 8,710,555      4,929,287      -                     13,639,842    

Other Assets: 
Investment in subsidiary (406,349)        -                     406,349         -                     
Pledges receivable, net, noncurrent 500,941         -                     -                     500,941         
Operating reserve -                     89,200           -                     89,200           
Replacement reserves 45,322           136,680         -                     182,002         
Deposit 25,000           -                     -                     25,000           

Total Other Assets 164,914         225,880         406,349         797,143         

TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,406,079      $ 5,168,692      $ 403,394         $ 14,978,165    

ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated
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Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 87,206           $ 9,276             $ (2,955)            $ 93,527           
Accrued expenses 111,758         -                     -                     111,758         
Tenant trust funds 27,276           6,157             -                     33,433           
Tenant security deposits 15,786           11,988           -                     27,774           
Interest payable -                     8,587             -                     8,587             
Lines-of-credit payable 190,000         -                     -                     190,000         
Current portion of long-term liabilities 22,589           -                     -                     22,589           

Total Current Liabilities 454,615         36,008           (2,955)            487,668         

Long-Term Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion 7,692,870      4,599,398      -                     12,292,268    
Interest payable 316,805         939,667         -                     1,256,472      

Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,009,675      5,539,065      -                     13,548,740    

Total Liabilities 8,464,290      5,575,073      (2,955)            14,036,408    

Minority Interest in Subsidiary -                     -                     (32)                 (32)                 

Net Assets: 
Unrestricted 245,078         (406,381)        406,381         245,078         
Temporarily restricted 696,711         -                     -                     696,711         

Total Net Assets 941,789         (406,381)        406,381         941,789         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 9,406,079      $ 5,168,692      $ 403,394         $ 14,978,165    

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated
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Unrestricted Net Assets:
Support and Revenue:

Contributions $ 1,640,180       $ -                  $ -                 $ 1,640,180  
Grants 748,395          -                  -                 748,395     
Rental income 494,822          324,523      (391,086)    428,259     
In-kind contributions 294,845          -                  -                 294,845     
Developer fees 689,861          -                  -                 689,861     
Social enterprise 33,661            -                  -                 33,661       
Interest and miscellaneous 9,171              22,957        (16,386)      15,742       
Net assets released from restriction 176,578          -                  -                 176,578     

Total Support and Revenue 4,087,513       347,480      (407,472)    4,027,521  

Operating Expenses:
Program services 3,209,297       286,623      (407,472)    3,088,448  
Fundraising 383,412          -                  -                 383,412     
Management and general 241,525          24,571        -                 266,096     

Total Operating Expenses 3,834,234       311,194      (407,472)    3,737,956  

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets Before 
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) 253,279          36,286        -                 289,565     

Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):
Excess (deficit) of support and revenue

over expenses of subsidiary (239,439)         -                  241,858     2,419         
Partnership loss (39)                  -                  -                 (39)             
Depreciation (296,400)         (165,303)     -                 (461,703)    
Interest - residual receipts debt (125,996)         (112,841)     -                 (238,837)    

Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) (661,874)         (278,144)     241,858     (698,160)    

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets (408,595)         (241,858)     241,858     (408,595)    

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions 201,413          -                  -                 201,413     
Net assets released from restrictions (176,578)         -                  -                 (176,578)    

Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 24,835            -                  -                 24,835       

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 941,789          (406,381)     406,381     941,789     

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 558,029          $ (648,239)     $ 648,239     $ 558,029     

Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated

Solutions
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Unrestricted Net Assets:
Support and Revenue:

Contributions $ 1,949,680  $ -                $ -                $ 1,949,680 
Grants 456,085     -                -                456,085    
Rental income 357,126     315,537    (367,850)   304,813    
In-kind contributions 208,241     -                -                208,241    
Developer fees 150,000     -                -                150,000    
Social enterprise 33,782       -                33,782      
Interest and miscellaneous 28,212       21,570      (16,386)     33,396      
Net assets released from restriction 394,596     -                -                394,596    
Total Support and Revenue 3,577,722  337,107    (384,236)   3,530,593 

Operating Expenses:
Program services 2,553,881  288,643    (384,236)   2,458,288 
Fundraising 364,326     -                -                364,326    
Management and general 197,373     17,302      -                214,675    

Total Operating Expenses 3,115,580  305,945    (384,236)   3,037,289 

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets Before 
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) 462,142     31,162      -                493,304    

Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):
Excess (deficit) of support and revenue

over expenses of subsidiary (237,969)    -                240,373    2,404        
Depreciation (220,656)    (158,694)   -                (379,350)   
Interest - residual receipts debt (70,093)      (112,841)   -                (182,934)   

Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) (528,718)    (271,535)   240,373    (559,880)   

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets (66,576)      (240,373)   240,373    (66,576)     

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions 166,753     -                -                166,753    
Net assets released from restrictions (394,596)    -                -                (394,596)   

Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (227,843)    -                -                (227,843)   

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 1,236,208  (166,008)   166,008    1,236,208 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 941,789     $ (406,381)   $ 406,381    $ 941,789    

Solutions
Solutions For Family
Change, Inc. Center, L.P. Eliminations Consolidated
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Note - Basis of Presentation 
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Solutions for Change, Inc. 
and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance 
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. 
 
 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Federal 
CFDA 

Number
Federal 

Expenditures

14.218 $ 445,509        
14.231 6,825            
14.235 22,494          

474,828        

   Pass-Through Programs:
   Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants: 14.218

23,654          
      County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 472,556        
          Total Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 496,210        

   Emergency Solutions Grants Program: 14.231
      County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 89,395          
   Shelter Plus Care : 14.238
      County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 160,518        
   HOME Investment Partnerships Program: 14.239
      County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 2,935,477     
   Neighborhood Stabilization Program (Recovery Act Funds): 14.256
      County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community Development 2,294,761     

5,976,361     

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 6,451,189     

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Programs:

Supportive Housing Program
   Total Direct Programs

   Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Total Pass-Through Programs

Emergency Solutions Grants Program

   City of Vista
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Solutions for Change, Inc.  
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Solutions for Change, Inc., 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2013, and the related 
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 15, 2014. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Solutions for 
Change, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s consolidated 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is 
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Solutions for Change, Inc.’s consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
San Diego, California 
May 15, 2014 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance 
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over 

Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Solutions for Change, Inc.  
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Solutions for Change, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Solutions 
for Change, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013.  Solutions for Change, Inc.’s 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit 
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about Solutions for Change, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Solutions for Change, Inc.’s compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Solutions for Change, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended December 31, 2013. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Solutions for Change, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Solutions for Change, Inc.’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Solutions for 
Change, Inc.’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.  
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
San Diego, California 
May 15, 2014 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results:      
      
Financial Statements      
      
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified    
      
Internal control over financial reporting:      

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes X No  
Significant deficiencies identified not considered       

to be material weaknesses?  Yes X None reported 
      
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  Yes X No  
      
Federal Awards      
      
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance  Unmodified    

for major programs:      
      
Internal control over major programs:      

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes X None reported 
Significant deficiency identified not considered      

to be material weakness(es)?  Yes X No  
      
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported      

in accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?  Yes X No  
  
Identification of major programs:  
  
CDFA Number(s)  
  
14.256 Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
  
14.218 Community Development Block 

Grant/Entitlement Grants 
  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between      

Type A and Type B programs: $  300,000    
      
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes  No  
      
Section II - Financial Statement Findings:      
      
None      
      
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:      
      
None      
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There were no prior audit findings for Solutions for Change, Inc. relative to federal awards. 
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Steven W. Northcote, C.P.A. 
Michael S. Schreibman, C.P.A. 
Michael J. Zizzi, C.P.A. 
Julie A. Firl, C.P.A. 
Nicholas M. Gines, C.P.A. 

Members 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
California Society of Certified Public Accountants 

Certified Public Accountants 
A Partnership of Professional Corporations 

C 
 

L 
 

& 
 Leaf & Cole, LLP 

May 15, 2014 
Tammy Megison 
Solutions for Change, Inc 
722 West California Avenue 
Vista, California  92083 
 
Dear Ms. Megison: 
 
Enclosed is the single audit reporting package for Solutions for Change, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 
2013.  Following are the filing requirements for these reports. 
 

1. Federal Audit Clearinghouse: 
 

The single audit reporting package is required to be submitted electronically through the Federal 
Audit Clearinghouse Internet Data Entry System.  We have entered the Form SF-SAC and uploaded 
the complete single audit package as required.  The submission must still be certified by both the 
auditee and the auditor.  Upon receipt of the e-mail from the Federal Audit Clearinghouse we will 
certify as the auditor. 
 
You will receive an e-mail from the Federal Audit Clearinghouse with instructions as to how you 
enter your signature codes online to certify the submission. The federal Audit Clearinghouse will send 
e-mails to the auditee and auditor to confirm the receipt of the Form SF-SAC and single audit 
reporting package.  Please print the e-mail and retain for your records. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
LEAF & COLE, LLP 

 
Julie A. Firl 

 
Enclosures 
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SMCF Resolution No 2014-128 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF GRANT 

MONIES TO CERTAIN NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION APPLICANTS 
  

-- WINTER QUARTER 2015 -- 
 
 WHEREAS, the San Marcos Community Foundation Board of Directors is authorized, pursuant to its 
adopted articles and bylaws, to entertain proposals for non-profit activities from qualified public and charitable 
groups; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a total of three (3) regular grant proposals were received by the Foundation prior to the  
January 5, 2015, submittal deadline established for the 2015 winter quarter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors did, at its quarterly meeting of February 17, 2015, consider such 
proposals and oral arguments pertaining to such proposals in a public hearing duly advertised and held in the 
manner required by law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the San Marcos Community Foundation Board of Directors 
does hereby authorize funding of the following regular grant proposals in the amounts specified: 
 
 REQUESTING ORGANIZATION           GRANT AWARD 
 Interfaith Community Services        $6,534 
 Just in Time For Foster Youth       $3,600 
 Solutions for Change        $6,534    
            
           Total: $16,668 
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that actual award of the above grants shall be contingent upon satisfactory 
compliance with all preconditions to funding specified. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board's decision is based upon its determination that the above-
referenced requests meet applicable legal requirements for funding as a non-profit activity and conform to 
Foundation policies pertaining to grant awards. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Marcos Community Foundation Board of Directors, at a regular 
meeting thereof, this 17th day of February, 2015, by the following roll call vote: 

 

      AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:   

     NOES: BOARD MEMBERS: NONE  

ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  

       APPROVED: 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Colleen Lukoff, President 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Wendy Kaserman, Secretary 
 
 
     
______________________   
Dated: 
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Winter Quarter 2015- Funding Recommendation Worksheet (Wildlife Fund Grant Application) 

Funds Available  for Grantmaking: $5,407.49 

* Note that the Wildlife Fund is not endowed 

 

 

 

 
Applicant Grant Type Summary of Request Requested GFC Recommended Funding  

NURTURED BY 
NATURE 

Regular To support their 
wildlife accessibility 
project, including the 
installation of 
boardwalks and the 
purchase of a 
people-moving off-
road cart to 
transport visitors 
with mobility 
impairments to 
enclosures 
throughout the 
Nurtured by Nature 
facilities.    Serves 
300 San Marcos 
residents annually. 

$5,000 $0* 
 

* It was determined upon further 
review of the application that it was 
not eligible for this type of grant. The 
GFC recommended not funding the 
application and have the organization 
either resubmit for a regular grant or 
submit a revised application that 
focuses more on the objectives of the 
Wildlife Fund. 

   Total Grants 
Requested: $5,000 
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MINUTES 
SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION  

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
1 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE 

SAN MARCOS, CA 92069 
 

NOVEMBER 18, 2014 MEETING 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF called the meeting to order at 6:03 
PM. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   BOARD MEMBER NAJERA led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 
PRESENT:  BOARD MEMBERS:  HALL, LUKOFF, NAJERA, WILLIAMS 
 
ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS:  BURTON, MICAL, WASCO 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Board Secretary Wendy Kaserman 
   Recording Secretary Julia Covert 
  
1. PRESIDENT’S REPORT  

 
BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF spoke about North County Philanthropy Council’s 
annual volunteer recognition awards event, as well as her trip to Tijuana with the 
San Diego Grant Makers.  She also discussed the San Diego Grant Makers 
“Nurturing our Community Garden” event for grant makers and grantees, which she 
attended with BOARD VICE PRESIDENT WILLIAMS.  They were encouraged to 
bring grantees with them to the event, and they brought along representatives from 
Meals on Wheels and Casa de Amparo. It was an excellent networking opportunity, 
and BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF proposed that the Foundation look for 
opportunities for some informal networking with grantees in the future. 
 
BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF proposed that the San Marcos Community 
Foundation Advisory Committee meet annually, rather than quarterly, and 
“piggyback” on to the February Board Meeting.   
 

2. SMCF GRANT FUNDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 

BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF introduced the regular grant proposals.  Board 
members agreed to table the application from Tri-City Hospital Foundation to a 
future Board meeting due to BOARD VICEP PRESIDENTS WILLIAMS’ conflict, 
and accept the remaining slate of recommended grants as presented.  
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San Marcos Community Foundation (SMCF) 
November 18, 2014 
Page 2 

 
 
BOARD MEMBER HALL MOTIONED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2014-
127 – APPROVING FUNDING FOR BAYSHORE PREPARATORY CHARTER 
SCHOOL IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,500, FUNDING FOR MEALS-ON-WHEELS 
GREATER SAN DIEGO, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,000, AND FUNDING 
FOR SAN MARCOS HIGH SCHOOL MUSIC BOOSTERS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,000.  BOARD MEMBER NAJERA SECONDED. THE MOTION PASSED BY 
UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE. 
 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

BOARD MEMBER HALL MOTIONED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR, 
BOARD MEMBER NAJERA SECONDED. THE MOTION PASSED BY 
UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE. 
 

3. WAIVER OF TEXT – Waived 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES SMCF Board Meeting August 19, 2014 - Approved 
 

5. REVIEW OF 2013 FEDERAL 990 FORM  
 

The Board Members expressed a desire to utilize a different tax preparer going 
forward, in particular staff should find someone with more expertise in foundations. 
 
BOARD MEMBER WILLIAMS MOTIONED TO APPROVE REVIEW OF 2013 
FEDERAL 990 TAX FORM.  BOARD MEMBER NAJERA SECONDED.  THE 
MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE.  

        
  
6. REPORT: FUND STATEMENT AND ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION – 

Noted and filed 
 

7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

ITEMS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

8.   MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A) 2015 Meeting and Grant Calendar 

 
The 2015 Meeting and Grant Calendar was discussed.  There may be a conflict 
with the November 11 Grant Funding Committee meeting, as it falls on Veteran’s 
Day.  Staff will handle and distribute calendar after change has been made. 
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San Marcos Community Foundation (SMCF) 
November 18, 2014 
Page 3 

 
 
 

B) Selection of next quarter’s Grant Funding Committee 
 

BOARD MEMBER WILLIAMS was selected as Chair for the winter quarter Grant 
Funding Committee.  After new appointments in January, BOARD MEMBER 
WILLIAMS will work with staff to determine remaining Committee Members.  

 
9.   ADJOURNMENT  

BOARD MEMBER HALL MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING, SECONDED 
BY BOARD MEMBER NAJERA.  MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOICE 
VOTE. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 

 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Wendy Kaserman, Board Secretary  Colleen Lukoff, President 
  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Julia Covert, Recording Secretary 
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MINUTES 
SPECIAL SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION BOARD MEETING 

VALLEY OF DISCOVERY ROOM 
1 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE 

SAN MARCOS, CA 92069 
 

December 16, 2014 MEETING 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF called the meeting to order at 6:03 
PM. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   BOARD MEMBER WASCO led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 
PRESENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  LUKOFF, NAJERA, WILLIAMS, BURTON, 

MICAL, WASCO 
 
 
ABSENT:  HALL 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Advisory Committee Member, Steve Kildoo 
   New Board Member (taking office in Jan. 2015), Kelly Tedrow 

Board Secretary, Wendy Kaserman 
    
  
1. GRANT APPLICATION PROPOSAL  

 
BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF introduced this item. Tri-City Hospital Foundation 
had submitted a regular grant in the Fall Quarter for funding for their Lung Cancer 
Screening Program to assess and refer high risk individuals who reside in San 
Marcos utilizing low-dose computed tomography (LDCT). The Grant Funding 
Committee had reviewed the application and recommended funding however at the 
November Board meeting the Board was unable to take action on the application 
due to the fact that VICE PRESIDENT WILLIAMS had to declare a conflict and was 
unable to vote on the item.  There was extensive discussion about the application in 
terms of to what degree participants would be encouraged to stop or minimize the 
behaviors putting them in the high risk category. 
 
BOARD MEMBER NAJERA MOTIONED TO APPROVE FUNDING FOR TRI-CITY 
HOSPITAL FOUNDATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,500, BOARD MEMBER 
MICAL SECONDED THE MOTION. THE MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS 
VOICE VOTE. 
 

2. RECEPTION 
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Special San Marcos Community Foundation (SMCF) Board Meeting 
December 14, 2014 
Page 2 

 
BOARD PRESIDENT LUKOFF thanked all of the Board members and Advisory 
Committee members for their service over the past year and recognized outgoing 
Board Member Mical for his many years of service on the Board. Additionally she 
provided new Board Member Kelly Tedrow with an opportunity to introduce herself.  

 
 
3.   ADJOURNMENT  

BOARD MEMBER MICAL MOTIONED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING, 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER BURTON.  MOTION PASSED BY 
UNANIMOUS VOICE VOTE. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 
 

 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Wendy Kaserman, Board Secretary  Colleen Lukoff, President 
  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Wendy Kaserman, Board Secretary 
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